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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
SERWE

The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2023.

Principal activities

The principal activities of Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
are set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results
The Group's loss for the year and the Group's financial position at 31 March
2023 are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 120 to 196.

Directors
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Karen CHAN Ka-yin (PR32 &)

Christopher CHAO Yu-hang (7% 8)

Ivy CHEUNG Wing-han (3R5E#)

LAU Kwok-fan (2IE1%))

Michael LEUNG Kin-man (&)

Victor NG Chi-keung ({E538)

Hendrick SIN (%%58)

Charleston SIN Chiu-shun (Jti8%%)

YEUNG Chuen-sing (132 5%)

Simon CHAN Sai-ming (BEAHER) (Chairman appointed on 1 April 2022)
Erica MA Yun (F5ER) (appointed on 1 April 2022)

Maggie TSOI Tsz-shan (ZXIEHH) (appointed on 1 April 2022)
MAK Tak-wai (Z2121%) (appointed on 20 July 2022)

Derrick PANG Yat-bond (&—3K) (appointed on 1 April 2023)
KONG Jianping (FL#*F) (appointed on 1 April 2023)

Cheryl CHOW Ho-kiu (B a]&)
(alternate Director to MAK Tak-wai, appointed on 15 May 2023)

Annie CHOI Suk-han (i) (resigned on 20 July 2022)
LING Kar-kan (Z%22)) (resigned on 31 March 2023)
Rosana WONG Wai-man (2585 (resigned on 31 March 2023)

Charmaine Amy WONG Hoi-wan (&7328) (alternate Director to MAK Tak-wai,
appointed on 20 July 2022 and resigned on 15 May 2023;
alternate Director to Annie CHOI Suk-Han, resigned on 20 July 2022)
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Directors (continued)

There being no provision in the Company's Articles of Association in connection
with the retirement of Directors by rotation, all existing Directors continue in
office for the following year.

The persons who were Directors of the subsidiaries of the Company during the
year and up to the date of this report (unless otherwise stated) were:

YAN King-shun ({E£15)
LAU Yip-man (2|2 ) (appointed on 10 October 2023)
LEE Kok-ming (Z=EEJ#8) (resigned on 23 July 2023)

Directors’ interests in shares and debentures

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Company's Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ interests in transactions, arrangements or contracts

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to the business of the
Company to which the Company or any of the Company’s holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

Management contracts

Save for the management agreement of Le Méridien Hong Kong, Cyberport, the
facilities management agreement and the system operation contract, no other
contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the businesses of the Company and its subsidiaries were
entered into or existed during the year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
SERWE

Permitted indemnity provision

During the year and up to the date of this report, the permitted indemnity
provision as defined in section 469 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
for the benefit of the Directors of the Company was in force. The Company has
arranged for appropriate insurance cover for the Directors’ liabilities in respect
of any legal actions against its Directors arising out of corporate activities.

Events after the reporting period
Details of the significant events of the Group after the reporting period are set
out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

Auditors

Ernst & Young retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment. A
resolution for the reappointment of Ernst & Young as auditors of the Company
will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Simon CHAN Sai-ming
Chairman

Hong Kong
12 December 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Independent auditor’s report

To the members of Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
EEYBEEEARAR

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hong Kong
Cyberport Management Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the "Group”) set out on pages 120 to 196, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2023,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2023, and of
its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the consolidated financial statements and
auditor’s report thereon

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the report of the
Directors, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
VR ER S Gk

Responsibilities of the Directors for the consolidated financial
statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the Directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial

statements (continued)
Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
12 December 2023
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AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LESHREHBRE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

A LTS
Ze8m

Year ended 31 March 2023 #;Z2023F3H31 HILEE

REVENUE

Other net income

EXPENSES BEFORE PUBLIC MISSION ACTIVITIES

EXPENSES AND DEPRECIATION
Building management expenses
Staff costs
Government rent and rates
Other operating expenses

Finance costs

OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE PUBLIC MISSION
ACTIVITIES EXPENSES AND DEPRECIATION

Public mission activities expenses, net

OPERATING LOSS BEFORE DEPRECIATION

Depreciation

LOSS BEFORE TAX

Income tax

LOSS FOR THE YEAR
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Notes

L

2023 2022
HKD HKD

BT BT
412,042,881 416,817,592
78,479,710 6,366,632
490,522,591 423,184,224
(183,727,919)  (175,145,689)
(101,608,732) (71,777,349)
(15,204,906) (15,692,883)
(87,291,175) (44,049,095)
(47,963) (84,848)

(387,880,695)

(306,749,864)

102,641,896
(186,655,669)

116,434,360
(180,621,855)

(84,013,773)
(162,538,732)

(64,187,495)
(155,085,613)

(246,552,505)

(219,273,108)

(246,552,505)

(219,273,108)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME

Other comprehensive (loss)/income that will not be

reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:

- Changes in fair value of equity investments
designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR

Year ended 31 March 2023 #;Z2023F3H831 HILFE

FABHE

Hftt2ME (§538) Wz

KR BEA MO EERE 2 Hith
2@ (§18) /i :
- EERAABESAHMEERGE S
RAREZ AR BEELS

FREMEE (B58) 1 (NRIRE)

FAZEBREHE

maZEWER
2023 2022
HKD HKD
#IT BT

(246,552,505)

(219,273,108)

(139,838,708)

99,193,026

(139,838,708)

99,193,026

(386,391,213)

(120,080,082)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RE M EIAAR

As at 31 March 2023 7220233831 H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Deferred rental receivables
Cyberport Macro Fund investments

Prepayments and deposits

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries
Investments in securities

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade payables

Other payables and accruals

Rental and other deposits

Amount due to the immediate holding company

Lease liabilities

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES
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2023
Notes HKD
B 5% BT

13 3,225,323,252

14(a) 1,190,514
6,525,764

15 125,852,290
18 2,432,671

2022
HKD

2,942,946,396
3,358,084
10,453,908
273,269,615
5,163,496

3,361,324,491

3,235,191,499

376,004 171,488

17 27,999,345 18,743,644
18 31,192,691 47,115,314
27(b) 201,442 1,938,909
16 653,239,404 692,395,437
19 326,394,805 294,335,411
1,039,403,691 1,054,700,203
72,459,276 45,531,974

20 252,792,148 235,923,137
21 103,973,471 94,287,294
27(b) 254,303,568 254,303,568
14(b) 1,279,666 2,254,797
684,808,129 632,300,770
354,595,562 422,399,433

3,715,920,053

3,657,590,932

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Development maintenance fund

Lease liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Net assets

EQUITY
Share capital

Reserves

Total equity

Simon CHAN Sai-ming
FERA4mHEA
Director

%

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

FERBER
BERIEEES
HE&E

JETRBN R AR

BEEE

i

&N

(G

MR

VA=A
w3

FAFSAR R

As at 31 March 2023 72202343831 H

2023 2022

Notes HKD HKD
FisE BT BT
22 371,802,919 379,206,407
14(b) - 1,279,666
371,802,919 380,486,073
3,344,117,134  3,277,104,859

23 984,000,002 538,000,002
2,360,117,132  2,739,104,857
3,344,117,134  3,277,104,859

lvy CHEUNG Wing-han
SRAEY
Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

o B e A E) R oS

Year ended 31 March 2023 &£ 2023FE3831 HIEFE Year ended 31 March 2023 & £ 2023FE3831 HIEFE

At 1 April 2021 1202154818 300,000,002 5,377,494,224 33,124,474 (2559,979,539)  3,150,639,161
Issue of shares BTN 23 446,000,000 - - - 446,000,000
Transfer of fair value reserve upon BAREEREEREM
Loss for the year FNER - - - (219273108)  (219.273,108) the deregistration of an equity 2EUE 2 FHERA
Other comprehensive income FEREMZENE investment at fair value through REZAAEEES
for the year: other comprehensive income - - 9,053,449 (9,053,449) -
- Changes in fair value of equity - EERANEERA Transfer from development MEREBELEEE
investments designated HEt2mla 2 RA maintenance fund to capital reserve ErNET 22 - 7.403,488 - - 7,403,488
at fair value through other REZ AR EBED
comprehensive income, net of tax (InBz#IE) - - 99,193,026 - 99,193,026
At 31 March 2023 2023538318 984,000,002  5,393,443,492* (2,794,852)* (3,030,531,508)*  3,344,117,134
Total comprehensive loss for the year ~ ERZEEEEE - - 99,193,026 (219,273,108) (120,080,082) * These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HKD2,360,117,132 (2022: HKD2,739,104,857) in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Y RERRREOERAMBRAE A AMB2360,117,132587T (20226 © 2,739,104,857357T) o
Subtotal et 300,000,002 5,377,494,224 132,317500  (2,779,252,647)  3,030,559,079
Issue of shares BTRM 23 238,000,000 - - - 238,000,000
Transfer of fair value reserve upon BARBEREEREM
the deregistration of an equity PEMNGEZFHERA
investment at fair value through REZAREEES)
other comprehensive income - - (4,327,093) 4,327,093 -
Transfer from development REBEEESEEE
maintenance fund to capital reserve BAEE 22 - 8,545,780 - - 8,545,780
At 31 March 2022 and 12022538318 K
at 1 April 2022 1202254818 538,000,002  5,386,040,004* 127,990,407 (2,774,925,554)*  3,277,104,859
Loss for the year FREE - - - (246,552,505)  (246,552,505)
Other comprehensive loss for FREMEEEAS !
the year:
- Changes in fair value of equity - EERANEERA
investments designated Hit2EN Gz BE
at fair value through other BEZANBEEE
comprehensive income, net of tax (InB&iR1E) - - (139,838,708) - (139,838,708)
Total comprehensive loss for the year ~ FRZEEEEEE - - (139,838,708)  (246,552,505)  (386,391,213)
Subtotal NG 538,000,002  5,386,040,004 (11,848,301)  (3,021,478,059)  2,890,713,646
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
/v\Tmiﬁﬁ/}\Liﬁ

Year ended 31 March 2023 #;Z2023F3H31 HILEE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

,W =) Eﬁi/m%%
Year ended 31 March 2023 #;Z2023F3831 HILFE

2023 2022 2023 2022
Notes HKD HKD Notes HKD HKD
B 5% #IT BT = BT BT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES EEEHZRERE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEHZRERE
Loss before tax PRI RSB (246,552,505) (219,273,108) Purchase of items of property, plant and equipment BAYE KSR HEE (442,775,055) (311,645,142)
Adjustments for: HHEE Purchase of Cyberport Macro Fund investments BASIS BB EESRSE (12,227,990) (42,146,518)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M~ W RREITE 6 160,371,162 152,612,032 Purchase of investments at fair value through BARAREES AEBTR
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERESETE b 2,167,570 2,473,581 profit or loss KE (252,247,504) (344,756,154)
Realisation of government grants BRFR B 88 (83,160,826) (87.913,826) Proceeds from sale and redemption of held for HERBRIFEIRKRE
Interest income from financial assets at AT S SRS maturity investments FrigsIA 49,384,925 34,981,200
amortised cost, net of amortisation of premium FI U AR RS B 4 (316,887) (2,603.975) Proceeds from sale and redemption of investments HERBELRRANEEA
Interest income from investments at fair value BAREETAEBEZ at fair value through profit or loss R 2 RAMSHR 234,507,136 396,590,932
through profit or loss BRI B 4 (15,680,489)  (15,049,857) Proceeds from sale and redemption of investment  HERMEIRAREEI AR
Interest income from investments at fair value BARBESAEMEE at fair value through other comprehensive income =i 2 R RS R Lus=01225 B
through other comprehensive income a2 B EF BWA 10 - (2,334,269) Interest income received from: BIABUA
Fair value losses on debt investments at BN BE S A B > (B - Financial assets at amortised cost - IR AT R SR EE 316,887 2,908,304
fair value through profit or loss, net KREANDBERIEFEE 3,589,500 138,781 - Investments at fair value through profit or loss - BAREEFABGEZRE 15,273,105 16,017,365
Net realised/unrealised losses on investments BARBESABGRIKE - Bank deposits - IRITER 6,056,002 1,646,494
at fair value through profit or loss B#IE KSR EFE 4 8,041,445 28,552,189 (Increase)/decrease in time deposits with R A=@BA U L EH
Interest income on bank deposits SRITERF B WA 4 (6,930,337) (1,638,215) original maturity of more than three months 73 (g R (43,346,604) 326,331
Impairment of trade receivables FEUBRFRE b 2,000,117 29,625
Impairment of other receivables Rt UG E 6 - 8,497,518 Net cash flows used in investing activities BEEDRRRSREPE (430,527,274)  (246,077,188)
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEYE MR RREER
plant and equipment, net 2 51879 RE 6 27,037 -
Finance costs MBER 6 47,963 84,848
Revaluation gains on investments BREBGHWE (844,686) (408,687)
(177,240,936) (136,833,363
Decrease in deferred rental receivables PR SE FE W FR & R 3,928,144 2,841,440
(Increase)/decrease in inventories 75 gm e (204,516) 40,712
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables FEUSBRE=R (3210) R (11,255,818) 1,629,915
Decrease in prepayments, deposits FEMRIE ~ e R EM
and other receivables FEU FUR D 21,935,167 14,458,969
Decrease in amounts due from fellow subsidiaries i EEN VNSRS 1,737,467 103,083
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables FEATERZRIE 0 CRiZL) 26,927,302 (4,708,183)
Increase in other payables and accruals =R NENEY S g ==zl 28,528,527 12,740,546
Increase/(decrease) in rental and other deposits HEREMBSE M, G 9,686,177 (1,143,189)

Cash used in operations WEFFAZIRE (95,958,486) (110,870,070)
Interest on lease liabilities HEaEMNE (47,963) (84,848)
Net cash flows used in operating activities REEHFAZREREPE (96,006,449)  (110,954,918)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FRERERER

Year ended 31 March 2023 &% 2023F3831 HIEFE

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Government grants received

Principal portion of lease payments
Proceeds from issue of shares

Increase in amount due from immediate
holding company

Net cash flows from financing activities

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCE OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position

Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity
of more than three months when acquired

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
consolidated statement of cash flows
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Notes

L

25(a)
25(a)

2023 2022

HKD HKD

AIT BT
71,501,310 32,237,246
(2,254,797) (2,533,072)
446,000,000 238,000,000
= 9,990
515,246,513 267,714,164

(11,287,210)

(89,317,942)

269,402,547 358,720,489
258,115,337 269,402,547
326,394,805 294,335,411

(68,279,468)

(24,932,864)

258,115,337

269,402,547

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The registered office
of the Company is located at Level 6, Cyberport 2, 100 Cyberport Road,
Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is to support and promote the
innovation and technology development in Hong Kong through the creation
of a comprehensive ecosystem of digital technology companies.

With a vision to build Cyberport as a main force in developing the
digital technology industry as a key economic driver of Hong Kong (the
“Vision"), the public mission of the Company is anchored in three strategic
directions:

Talent Cultivation and Development;
- Industry Development; and
- Integration of New and Traditional economies.

In the Group's relentless pursuit of excellence, the Group takes a
pragmatic and comprehensive approach in realising its Vision. To ensure
the line-up of services is dynamic and flexible in meeting the needs of
budding technology entrepreneurs, investor community and industry
talent, the Company actively builds strong partnerships with leaders from
technology industry, academia, research institutes and professional bodies.

To further extend the Group's entrepreneurial support to scalable start-
ups, the Company has launched the Cyberport Macro Fund (the "CMF")
for Hong Kong-based digital entrepreneurs in 2017. With an initial size of
HKD200 million, the CMF aims to provide Cyberport's start-ups with early
financing and promote the development of venture capital ecosystem in
Hong Kong. In April 2021, Cyberport had committed to inject an additional
amount of HKD200 million into the CMF and extend the scope to cover
Series B and later-stage investments. Further details of the investments
made up to the end of the reporting period are included in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group has established various teams (“Public Mission Teams") to
achieve the above public mission. The expenses incurred by Public Mission
Teams that contribute to the successful running of the public mission
activities are disclosed in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Hong Kong Cyberport
Development Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong
and is wholly owned by the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region ("HKSAR") via The Financial Secretary Incorporated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MRl RMIEE
31 March 2023 20233 H31H
1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of Issued ordinary
Name incorporation share capital
=B SEARIIMEE BEITEBERA
Cyberport Macro Fund Limited Hong Kong HKD1
G 1870
CMF One Limited Hong Kong HKD1
BE 17878
CMF Two Limited Hong Kong HKD1
v 1873
CMF Three Limited Hong Kong HKD1
BE 1787
CMF Four Limited Hong Kong HKD1
o 1873
CMF Five Limited Hong Kong HKD1
v 1870
CMF Six Limited Hong Kong HKD1
BH 17878
CMF Seven Limited Hong Kong HKD1
G 1877
CMF Eight Limited Hong Kong HKD1
BE 1787
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, debt investments
at fair value through profit or loss and equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income which have been measured at fair
value. These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HKD"), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 March 2023. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results in
control. When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such
control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control described above. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B ER R MIEE

31 March 2023 20233831 H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)
If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets

(including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying

amount of any non-controlling interest and (i) the cumulative translation

differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the

consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained and

(iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share

of components previously recognised in other comprehensive income is

reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the

same basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the

related assets or liabilities.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first time for

132

the current year's consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use

Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
Illustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16,
and HKAS 41

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs that are applicable to

the Group are described below:

(a)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 replace a reference to the previous
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting (the "Conceptual Framework") issued in June 2018
without significantly changing its requirements. The amendments also
add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its recognition principle for an entity
to refer to the Conceptual Framework to determine what constitutes
an asset or a liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities and
contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of HKAS 37 or
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred separately rather than assumed
in a business combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3 should refer
to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual
Framework. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent
assets do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group
has applied the amendments prospectively to business combinations
that occurred on or after 1 January 2022. As there were no contingent
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities within the scope of the
amendments arising in the business combination that occurred during
the year, the amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

(continued)

(b)

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from
the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds
from selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises the
proceeds from selling any such items, and the cost of those items as
determined by HKAS 2 Inventories, in profit or loss. The Group has
applied the amendments retrospectively to items of property, plant
and equipment made available for use on or after 1 January 2021.
Since there was no sale of items produced prior to the property, plant
and equipment being available for use, the amendments did not have
any impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the
contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract. Costs
that relate directly to a contract include both the incremental costs
of fulfilling that contract [e.g., direct labour and materials) and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract
(e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well as contract
management and supervision costs). General and administrative costs
do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are
explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. The
Group has applied the amendments prospectively to contracts for
which it has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at 1 January 2022 and
no onerous contracts were identified. Therefore, the amendments did
not have any impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out amendments to
HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, Illustrative Examples accompanying HKFRS 16,
and HKAS 41. Details of the amendments that are applicable to the
Group are as follows:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity
includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified
financial liability are substantially different from the terms of
the original financial liability. These fees include only those paid
or received between the borrower and the lender, including fees
paid or received by either the borrower or lender on the other's
behalf. The Group has applied the amendment prospectively from
1 April 2022. As there was no modification or exchange of the
Group's financial liabilities during the year, the amendment did
not have any impact on the financial position or performance of
the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B ER R MIEE

31 March 2023 20233831 H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL

134

REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these consolidated financial

statements.
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between
HKAS 28 (2011) an Investor and its Associate or

Joint Venture®

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts'

Amendments to HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts'-®

Amendment to HKFRS 17 Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and

HKFRS 9 - Comparative Information®

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current

(the “2020 Amendments”)2 4
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

(the “2022 Amendments”)?

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting Policies’

Amendments to HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 12

Definition of Accounting Estimates'

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction'

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024
S No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
8 As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective date of the 2020 Amendments

was deferred to annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. In addition, as a
consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022 Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5
Presentation of Financial Statements - Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised to align the corresponding wording
with no change in conclusion

® As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October 2020, HKFRS 4 was
amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather
than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023

& An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating to the classification overlay set
out in this amendment shall apply it on initial application of HKFRS 17
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable
to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an inconsistency
between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition of
a gain or loss resulting from a downstream transaction when the sale
or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets that do
not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction
is recognised in the investor’'s profit or loss only to the extent of the
unrelated investor's interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory
effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was
removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory effective
date will be determined after the completion of a broader review of
accounting for associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments
are available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements that a seller-lessee
uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale and leaseback
transaction to ensure the seller-lessee does not recognise any amount of
the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and
shall be applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions entered
into after the date of initial application of HKFRS 16 (i.e., 1 January 2019).
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or
non-current, in particular the determination over whether an entity has
a right to defer settlement of the liabilities for at least 12 months after
the reporting period. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the
likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the
liability. The amendments also clarify the situations that are considered a
settlement of a liability. In 2022, the HKICPA issued the 2022 Amendments
to further clarify that, among covenants of a liability arising from a loan
arrangement, only those with which an entity must comply on or before the
reporting date affect the classification of that liability as current or non-
current. In addition, the 2022 Amendments require additional disclosures
by an entity that classifies liabilities arising from loan arrangements as
non-current when it has a right to defer settlement of those liabilities
that are subject to the entity complying with future covenants within 12
months after the reporting period. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be applied
retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. An entity that applies
the 2020 Amendments early is required to apply simultaneously the
2022 Amendments, and vice versa. The Group is currently assessing the
impact of the amendments and whether existing loan agreements may
require revision. Based on a preliminary assessment, the amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
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REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require entities
to disclose their material accounting policy information rather than their
significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information is material
if, when considered together with other information included in an entity's
financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions
that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on
the basis of those financial statements. Amendments to HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply the concept
of materiality to accounting policy disclosures. Amendments to HKAS 1
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
and earlier application is permitted. Since the guidance provided in the
amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an effective
date for these amendments is not necessary. The Group is currently
revisiting the accounting policy disclosures to ensure consistency with the
amendments.

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes in
accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies. Accounting
estimates are defined as monetary amounts in financial statements that
are subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how
entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting
estimates. The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to changes in accounting
policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after the
start of that period. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception in HKAS 12 so that it no longer applies to transactions that
give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, such as
leases and decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are required
to recognise a deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit
is available) and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences arising
from these transactions. The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be
applied to transactions related to leases and decommissioning obligations
at the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented, with any
cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained profits or other component of equity as appropriate at that date.
In addition, the amendments shall be applied prospectively to transactions
other than leases and decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is
permitted.

The Group has applied the initial recognition exception and did not
recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary
differences for transactions related to leases. Upon initial application of
these amendments, the Group will recognise a deferred tax asset and a
deferred tax liability for deductible and taxable temporary differences
associated with right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, and recognise the
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment
to the opening balance of retained profits at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, debt investments at fair value through profit or loss, and equity
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming
that market participants act in their economic best interest.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the consolidated financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, financial assets
and deferred tax assets), the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's or cash-
generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and
is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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(continued) (continued)

FEMEEZRME (&) Related parties (continued) RABETS (48)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether
there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation] had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment
loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person's family and
that person:
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or of
a parent of the Group;
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the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity
is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified
in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the

entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group or to
the parent of the Group.
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(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of
the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates
them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of
each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are
as follows:

Buildings Over the period of the lease

Building services and support facilities 10%

Information technology facilities 20%

Centres equipment 20% - 33'/.%
Leasehold improvements 10%
Furniture and equipment 10% - 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under construction, which
is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs
on related borrowed funds during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all
leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The
Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use
assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of the
lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-
of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the lease terms.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the end of
the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

(b) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the
lease at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The
lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising the option to terminate the lease. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as
an expense in the period in which the event or condition that triggers
the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the
lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease
liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the
lease term, a change in lease payments [e.g., a change to future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.
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(continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
its short-term leases (that is those leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option). Lease payments on short-term leases are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or when
there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an operating
lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each component on a
relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for on
a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the
statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term
on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’'s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group's business model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that
do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income ("0Cl"), it needs to
give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
("SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash
flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are not held
within the aforementioned business models are classified and measured at
fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its
equity investments as equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income when they meet the definition of equity under
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading.
The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to the
statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income
in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as
a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such
gains are recorded in other comprehensive income. Equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income are not
subject to impairment assessment.
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(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments
which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value
through other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity investments
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are also
recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a financial asset
host is not accounted for separately. The financial asset host together with
the embedded derivative is required to be classified in its entirety as a
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of
a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed
from the Group's consolidated statement of financial position) when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows
in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates, if and
to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the
asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group
has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses ("ECLs")
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs
are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest
rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing
of the default (a lifetime ECL). The Group considers that there has been
a significant increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-
looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.
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(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the following stages
for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date
(but that are not purchased or originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
or when the Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group applies the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the
Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and
the economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing component and
lease receivables, the Group chooses as its accounting policy to adopt the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies as described above.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
borrowings and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans
and borrowings and payables)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the effective interest rate amortisation process.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans
and borrowings and payables) (continued)

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included
in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability
is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
calculated using the weighted average cost method. Net realisable value is
based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs of disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and short
term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months when acquired,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term
deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as
to use.
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(continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided that
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of each reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss,
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of each reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences,
except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax
losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend
either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.
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(continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of
goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the
amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will be entitled
in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained
until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount
of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides the
customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted using the
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception. When the
contract contains a financing component which provides the Group with
a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised
under the contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price is
not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

Hotel and management services

Revenue from the provision of hotel and management services is
recognised over the scheduled period on a straight-line basis because the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by
the Group.

Revenue from food and beverages

Revenue from the sale of food and beverages is recognised at the point in
time when the control of the assets is transferred to the buyer, generally
upon consumption of the food and beverage items by the customer.

Other facilities services

Revenue from promotion, additional air-conditioning and chilled water
charge, license fee and other facilities charge is recognised over time
as services are rendered if the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

Revenue from event and venue fee, vetting and coordination fee, tenant
bus ticket and other premise fee is recognised at the point in time when
the customer has obtained control of the service, generally when the
services are rendered.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as income in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

Revenue from the car park fee is recognised when the services are
rendered.

Other incidental income and services income are recognised when the
income is entitled and services are rendered.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument
or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a payment
is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group transfers
the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers
control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Foreign currency transactions

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company's functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the
consolidated financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of each reporting
period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items
are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
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(continued)

Foreign currency transactions (continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration, the date of
initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises the
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the
Group determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the
advance consideration.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result
in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainties

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group performs reviews for impairment of non-financial assets
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the assets may not be recoverable.

The Group reviews certain indicators of potential impairment of these
assets such as reported sales and purchase prices, market demand
and general market conditions. The Group considers “Buildings held for
rental”, “Hotel building” and “Building services and support facilities” as
a portfolio of assets and identifies the cash-generating unit to which the
portfolio of assets belongs by referring to the valuation performed by
independent professional valuers, after taking into consideration the net
income allowing for reversionary potential. The assumptions adopted in
the property valuation are based on the market conditions existing at the
end of the reporting period, with reference to current market sales prices
and the appropriate capitalisation rate.

Based on the Group's best estimates, provision for impairment loss on the
non-financial assets is not necessary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainties (continued)

Investments in securities

The Group follows the guidance of HKFRS 9 on initial classification of
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturity as financial assets at amortised cost if the Group has the
intention and ability to hold such investments to maturity; or at fair value
through profit or loss if the investments are managed by external fund
managers and their performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, and
information about the investments is provided internally on that basis to
the Group's key management.

For financial assets at amortised cost, the Group evaluates its intention
and ability to hold such investments to maturity. If the Group fails to
keep these investments to maturity other than for specific circumstances
for example, selling financial assets with an insignificant amount close
to maturity, it will be required to reclassify the entire class as debt
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income. The
investments would, therefore, be measured at fair value not at amortised
cost.

For investments designated as at fair value through profit or loss, the
Group engages external fund managers to manage the investment
portfolio which is evaluated and reported internally on a fair value basis.
Accordingly, these investments are designated as at fair value through
profit or loss and are stated at fair value with subsequent changes in fair
value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various
customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography,
product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit
and other forms of credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical observed
default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical
credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if
forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are expected to
deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased number of
defaults in the financial services, media and retail sectors, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates
are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default
rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss experience and
forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of a
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about the ECLs on
the Group's trade receivables is disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainties (continued)

Fair value of Cyberport Macro Fund investments

The unlisted equity investments and unlisted debt investments have
been valued based on the recent market transaction prices, market-
based valuation techniques and expected cash flows discounted at current
rates applicable for items with similar terms and risk characteristics. The
valuations require the Group to make estimates about expected future
cash flows, credit risk, volatility and discount rates, and to determine the
comparable public companies (peers) and select the price multiple or
enterprise value multiple. Hence, they are subject to uncertainty. The fair
values of the unlisted equity investments and unlisted debt investments
at 31 March 2023 were HKD119,976,069 and HKD5,876,221, respectively.
Further details are included in notes 15 and 29 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant and equipment
In determining the useful lives and residual values of items of property,
plant and equipment, the Group has to consider various factors, such
as technical or commercial obsolescence arising from change or
improvements in the provision of services, or from a change in the market
demand for the service output of the asset, the expected usage of the
asset, the expected physical wear and tear, the care and maintenance
of the asset, and legal or similar limits on the use of the asset. The
estimation of the useful life of the asset is based on the experience of the
Group with similar assets that are used in a similar way. An adjustment of
depreciation is made if the estimated useful lives and/or residual values
of items of property, plant and equipment are different from previous
estimation. Useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period based on changes in circumstances.

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a lease,
and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate ("IBR") to measure
lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have
to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset
in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the
Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation when no observable
rates are available (such as the Group that does not enter into financing
transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and
conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are not in the Group's
functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs
(such as market interest rates) when available and is required to make
certain entity-specific estimates (such as the Company's stand-alone credit
rating).

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the
losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based
upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME 4,

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

Revenue from contracts with customers EREATMA
Income from hotel operation B EEWA
Building management income MEEEBUWA

- Management fee income — BEERA
- Other facilities income — Hha A

Revenue from other sources HMARZ WA

Rental income HBUA

Variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate Z P EEENR

Other lease payments, including fixed payments

Car park fee income JAEEIRA
Other incidental income HhE A

(a) Disaggregated revenue information for revenue from
contracts with customers

Type of services RF54EEY
Income from hotel operation BIEEERA

- Room income —EZRBA

- Food and beverage income — BRREURHRA
Building management income MEBBUA

- Management fee income —BIEERA

- Other facilities income — HMERHEMA

Total revenue from contracts with customers BER B ALERE

rE B IRARMIEE

31 March 2023 20233 H31H

g A ELE T A B8R
WAZ DT
2023 2022
HKD HKD
BT BT
42,538,055 1,536,481
93,953,219 92,394,809
33,707,828 30,835,496

170,199,102 124,766,786

R ER S FEIRIE B U B =

3,286,963 9,014,218

HMBEN > SEEEN™® 225,120,185 265,886,165

228,407,148 274,900,383
13,436,631 13,301,802
= 3,848,621

241,843,779 292,050,806

412,042,881 416,817,592

(@) BEREHNWAZDEBRAETR

2023 2022
HKD HKD
#IT BT
11,360,098 1,097,882
31,177,957 438,599
93,953,219 92,394,809
33,707,828 30,835,496

170,199,102 124,766,786
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4. REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME (continued)
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4. WG ABEMUGAEER (&)

(a) Disaggregated revenue information for revenue from (a) EREAHBMAZDEBAER (&)

contracts with customers (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME (continued)

(b) Performance obligations (continued)

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) which
amounted to HKD2,040,980 as at 31 March 2023 (2022: HKD1,106,162)

rE B IRARMIEE

31 March 2023 20233 H31H

4. G ABREMUGAEER (&)

(b) BHEE ()
2023638318 » nEEFGRBLAEME
(REBTHAHDRERIT) 2RZERS
2,040,980 7T (20224 : 1,106,162787%) » T8

2023 2022
HKD HKD
AT BT

Geographical markets 3B 5

Hong Kong 5B 170,199,102 124,766,786
Timing of revenue recognition UG A FEER I

Services transferred at a point in time A E —1E B 2R B RS 2 BRFS 53,905,268 19,126,223
Services transferred over time [ bF 885 2~ AR 7% 116,293,834 105,640,563
Total revenue from contracts with customers BREHWALEZE 170,199,102 124,766,786

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised in the
current reporting period that were included in the contract liabilities
at the beginning of the reporting period:

TEREIINFRERFAEDAA RSN EOE
BERZRAZE :

Revenue recognised that was included in contract — FEsRst ARSI ENEETZ

liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period: WA :

Income from hotel operation BIEEEWA

(b) Performance obligations

Information about the Group's performance obligations is summarised
below:

Income from hotel operation
The performance obligation is satisfied over time when services are
rendered.

Revenue from food and beverages
The performance obligation is satisfied when the customer obtains
control of the promised goods, being at the point when the customer
consumes the food and beverages at the restaurants. Payment of
the transaction is due immediately at the point when the customer
consumes the food and beverages.

Management fee income
The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services are
rendered.

Other facilities income

The performance obligation is satisfied over time or at the point in
time as services are rendered.
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2023 2022
HKD HKD
#BIT BT
1,106,162 1,460,345

(b) BB
BRAEERNEEZERBELNT ¢

EEEERA
B 40 B AT % 1R (L BR 5 B T S B R I TS T B
7o

B REEHRA

B EER & B ES &E 8 ah 2 EHI R
(BIFREREHERMKAIREIE) BT - &
FHERBREER LA IRS

BEEEWA
BOEERRERDEEZEBERME
fre

HAthaeHU A

B BB E R R SN R AR 5 S
fre

are expected to be recognised within one year.

HR I —FERFESD o

2023 2022
HKD HKD
T BT
Other net income HhUI AR EE
Interest income from financial assets at amortised — JREHMATIRZ SRMEEZFIS
cost, net of amortisation of premium of WA > kR B EH91,9528 7T
HKD91,952 (2022: HKD137,588) (20224 : 137,588787T) 316,887 2,603,975
Interest income from investments at fair value BARBESABRZREZFR
through profit or loss A 15,680,489 15,049,857
Interest income on bank deposits RITERZF B WA 6,930,337 1,638,215
Services income from fellow subsidiaries (Note) BRWE QD ZRBUA (FEE) 4,201,654 4,201,654
Net realised/unrealised losses on BANBESABRZREY
investments at fair value through profit or loss BEIR R EIREIEFE (8,041,445) (28,552,189)
Foreign exchange differences, net SN ER S EE (3,680,335) 2,784,780
Government grants B #BE - 2,684,200
Government subsidies on rental waiver HeHE 2 BT ERERL 61,713,927 -
Others Hih 1,358,196 5,956,140
78,479,710 6,366,632
Note: B5E

On 24 May 2000, a portion of the Inland Lot No. 8969 at Telegraph Bay, Pokfulam (the
“Residential Portion") was assigned to Hong Kong Cyberport (Ancillary Development) Limited
("HKCADL"), a fellow subsidiary, by Hong Kong Cyberport Development Holdings Limited
(the “immediate holding company”). Pursuant to the services agreement dated 25 October
2003 entered into between the Company and HKCADL, fixed monthly services income of
HKD125,600 was received from HKCADL commencing from November 2003 for the provision
of services by the Company to facilitate the operation of the Residential Portion. The fee was
revised to HKD200,000 commencing from April 2006 and to HKD261,000 commencing from
May 2008. The total amount received during the year was HKD3,132,000 (2022: HKD3,132,000).

Pursuant to the services agreement dated 12 March 2005 entered into between the Company
and Skillful Limited, a fellow subsidiary, monthly services income was received for the
provision of information technology and telecommunications services to the Residential
Portion. The total amount received during the year was HKD1,069,654 (2022: HKD1,069,654).

722000858248 > HEUBEFRIERE AR ((HEERAF )
BRRAMBASEEHES HEER) ARAE (THKCADLY) #itH
S IDAR B PR 8969 SRR AR —E D i (MEEZH ) © RIFE
ATIEAHKCADLFAETIZ H#A% 2003410825 B 2 fR# 1% » AT
RAETH;D 2 EBIREMRTS > B20034F 11 BRAEE B BHKCADLIK
BY125,60078 75 2 E ERBUA © B20065 48 %2008F58 L I
THWE S RIMERT 48 F 200,000 755 261,000 7T ° AFEEUWAE
873,132,000/ 7T (20224F : 3,132,00077T) ©

IRIRAA B ERF R KB A B Skillful Limited P57 32 H #A7200543
A12BZEBBHE > AARMETH O RHEANKLEARS
TS A WEARFSIA - AFEEBUARZEA1,069,654H87T (20226 ©
1,069,654 787T) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e BRI

31 March 2023 202343831 H

5. STAFF COSTS 5. BT 7.

BTRAZMNT :

An analysis of staff costs is as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The emoluments of the Directors of the Group disclosed pursuant to
section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of

e RHRRMEE
31 March 2023 202343H31H
7. EEME

RBEEBREMFHIFENFRAR (REEEF
mER) RBIF BB AEHEEMEWT ¢

the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)

Regulation are as follows:

Directors’ fees
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind
Discretionary bonuses

Retirement scheme contributions

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

2023

HKD

T
== —Fidke o -
#rE o RRREYERN = -
FYIETEAL - -
RIRET BN - _

8. AREBRSHES

Details of the remuneration of the five non-director highest paid employees

ERFEERHESZMEFRUT

2023
HKD
#T
Salaries and allowances s KRR 144,199,228 106,622,749
Retirement benefit scheme contributions BRIKEF IR 5,902,130 4,854,533
Staff benefits and other staff costs ETREMMEME T aA 470,040 846,120
150,571,398 112,323,402
Analysed into: DA
Hotel EE 50,774,781 19,552,360 8.
Corporate office NEPRER 50,833,951 52,224,989
101,608,732 71,777,349
Public Mission Teams (note 10) NEREREEK (FizE10) 48,962,666 40,546,053
150,571,398 112,323,402

6. LOSS BEFORE TAX

The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Rental income less outgoings of
HKD14,460,506 (2022: HKD14,986,883)

Cost of inventories

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Lease payments not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities

Fair value losses on debt investments
at fair value through profit or loss, net

Auditor’s remuneration
Impairment of trade receivables
Impairment of other receivables

Loss on disposal of items of property, plant
and equipment, net

Finance costs:

Interest on lease liabilities
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AU AINBRRESZ 14,460,506 75
(20224F : 14,986,883 7T)

FEMAE
M~ BB RREBITE

EREEERE
Tt ARES R ENEENR

BAnBEFABEZERRE
NRBEFEER

23 Gl

FEWERRR < BB

HE M NRIEZ B E

HEME  HEARBEEREZ
EIEFER

MBER

HEREZFE

PRIRAIAS R
FEBEZHRAMBDNR /GIA) TFIES :

2023
HKD
BT

(213,946,642) (259,913,500)

15,339,074 2,339,220

13 160,371,162 152,612,032
14(a) 2,167,570 2,473,581
14(c) 580,298 516,685
3,589,500 138,781

442,000 493,370

17 2,000,117 29,625
= 8,497,518

27,037 -

47,963 84,848

are as follows:

2023
HKD
b
Salaries and allowances Hre KR AG
(Including discretionary performance bonuses) (BERYIEERIEAL) 16,528,125 17,395,237
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREF IR 180,000 180,000
16,708,125 17,575,237

The number of the non-director highest paid employees whose

MENFUTHEEZFEERSHESZHEL

remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: R

HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000 2,000,0017875%2,500,0008 7T 1 -
HKD2,500,001 to HKD3,000,000 2,500,001787c23,000,0008 7T 1 1
HKD3,000,001 to HKD3,500,000 3,000,001787523,500,000787T 2 2

HKD3,500,001 to HKD4,000,000
HKD4,000,001 to HKD4,500,000
HKD4,500,001 to HKD5,000,000

3,500,00158 752 4,000,00058 7T - 1
4,000,001 752 4,500,00058 7T = 1
4,500,001787525,000,0008 7T
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31 March 2023 20233831 H

9. GOVERNMENT RENT AND RATES 9. AR ZE

WIBREMZDFWT -

An analysis of government rent and rates is as follows:

2023

HKD

BT
Hotel SEIE 744,400 706,000
Corporate office UNSIE) =<0 14,460,506 14,986,883
15,204,906 15,692,883
Public Mission Teams (note 10) NFREBERK (MisE10) 339,878 353,439
15,544,784 16,046,322

10. AR EmEEFEZH
AR B A EEBNRESMBIRRWEEFT
MR IR AR Een EBPMELE 2B EHERE
B HRBERRAREDEH L - BRAXEE

financial statements are considered as public mission activities expenses. &

Such expenses comprise:

10. PUBLIC MISSION ACTIVITIES EXPENSES, NET

All direct and indirect expenses incurred for the primary and dominant
purpose of public mission and that contribute to the successful running
of public mission activities as described in note 1 to the consolidated

2023
HKD
BT
Staff costs BT 48,962,666 40,546,053
Information technology facilities maintenance fees BRI REREEA 25,279,253 24,751,347
Financial assistance to industry start-ups BEEAFAIPEREEE) 91,865,327 92,323,480
Programme expenses (seminars, trainings, FHEIZH (stE ~ 53l LB
competitions, workshops and exhibitions) TEHREE) 22,742,959 16,134,043
Government rent and rates HAE Ko 7= B 339,878 353,439
Public mission communications NIREEIEE 4,939,763 4,336,536
Operating expenses BEZH 6,425,331 16,503,206
Government project expenses BFEEZH 32,145,205 76,797,334
Recovery of direct expenses (including government WEE#ZSE (BEBFmEEE
grants of HKD40,046,315 (2022: HKD79,856,461) 40,046,3158 70 (20224 ©
79,856,4617%7T)) (49,634,213) (88,928,095)
Interest income on redemption of an investment at fair ~ BEIZA A BEST AEMEEILE
value through other comprehensive income ZEREMNFEURA - (2,334,269)
Fair value losses on debt investments at fair value BARBES ABm 2 EBRE
through profit or loss, net NABEZEE 3,589,500 138,781
186,655,669 180,621,855
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11. INCOME TAX

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eV BRERMNEE

31 March 2023 202343H31H

11. ERi#

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group did

not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year

(2022: Nil).

A reconciliation of the tax credit applicable to the loss before tax at the

Hong Kong statutory rate to the tax amount at the Group's effective tax

rate is as follows:

Loss before tax

Tax credit at the Hong Kong statutory tax rate of 16.5%

Income not subject to tax

Expenses not deductible for tax

Tax losses not recognised

Tax amount at the Group's effective tax rate

12. DEFERRED TAX

PRI ARSI

REBEEME165%THZRIFIKR  (40,681,163)

HRAEEAFELRENESBELEAERN
BA 0 BB A BFISIREH BA (20224 ¢
) °

BARBEBAERETABZFRABEEZRE
BrRAZRAERBRRERFEZNAZHIR
E &

(246,552,505)  (219,273,108)

(36,180,063)

BERRZ WA (17,933,946) (12,422,667)
ENGIE Y 53 16,421 11,441,673
REERZIRIERR 58,598,688 37,161,057
BAEEEMRRESTE R - -
12. IRIEFRIA
FERMIBE ERBEZESHNT

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

At 1 April 2021

Deferred tax (credited)/
charged to profit or
loss during the year

At 31 March 2022 and
1 April 2022

Deferred tax (credited)/
charged to profit or
loss during the year

At 31 March 2023

#2021F481H

ERREE GtA).
PR ZEIEIRTE

7202253831 B K
2022448 1H

FAREE (GtA)
PR ZIEIEIR TR

22023538 31H

(165,183,447) 165,184,732 (1,285) -
(12,182,248) 12,187,136 (4,888) -
(177,365,695) 177,371,868 (6,173) -
(46,514,094) 47,056,088 (541,994) -
(223,879,789) 224,427,956 (548,167) -
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e B ER R MIEE
31 March 2023 20233831 H

12.

13"

162

DEFERRED TAX (continued) 12.

Deferred tax assets are not recognised for temporary differences arising
from tax losses carried forward due to uncertainty of realisation of the
related tax benefit through the future taxable profits. As at 31 March 2023,
the Group had unrecognised tax losses of approximately HKD3,173,000,000
(2022: approximately HKD2,818,000,000). The tax losses have no expiry
date and are yet to be agreed by the Inland Revenue Department.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Building
services
and support  Information
Buildings Hotel facilities  technology
eld for rental building B3 facilities Centres
b B BBE  EAME  equipment
iz iy SERE B 0RE

IREFRIA (49)
FR S 4 R B K AE 7S 15 4B o 2 FE AR 8 ) 2 R A

RIEF & » WAAEERIBEGIEFEE 2GR E
RERESDIEIEIR BB E o 1R2023FE3H31H » A&
E 2 RFE SR IER5 18494 3,173,000,000 7T (2022
£ 1 #92,818,000,00077) o MIBESIE I A EHA
B > BEFRFEHESR o

13. M3 - B RE

Leasehold  Furniture and
improvements ~ equipment Motor ~ Construction
fighz A vehicles  inprogress Total
R B B fEIR 5t

HKD HKD HKD HKD HKD HKD HKD HKD HKD HKD
& i En AT &R # A AT # #n
(note (ii)
(Mak(ii)
Cost it
At 1 April 2021 RNNELRIR 3OOTI3TT6 274937912 1316895121 247973381 60,886,204 200129933 244186851 710,000 - 5902843228
Addition TE - - 46,698,207 3380543 - 30,084,727 7779885 - 53BN 338,268,888
Disposal/written off HE /i - - - (B4 - - (b7A7054) - - (32192187)
At 31 March 2022 RONEBNE  3SNIBTG MATND 13359338 159I8TI 6088625 2BIGA0 5068 TIO0ND 2453556 6208919929
it 7E - S QMmE 7434 ST 1680104 - BEATH) LT
Disposal/written off HE /i - - - (Ban9.02) - - (14017413) - - (76,13438)
At 31 March 2023 POEIBIE  MSSIITe 2ASAISI2 LAOSIO6N6S TMIAI25  G0SGA25 L0ASSRS06 260313 710000 451980306 6575556546

Depreciation and impairment  fTERHE

At 1 April 2021 RNNEEIR 1309423251 101240678 1191523786 232722543 60,886,254 87138160 161932683 86,333 - 3145553688
Depreciation charge for the year  FRITERT 77,142,965 5,955,334 17921671 8,571,112 - 20,098,039 24,899,244 23,687 - 152412082
Disposal/written off HE /His - - - (55435133) - - (8757054) - - (32192187)
At 31 March 2022 H#202253A318 1,386,566,216 107,196,012 1,209,445,457 213,858,522 60,886,254 107,236,199 180,074,873 710,000 - 3,265,973,533
Deprecation charge for the year  ERTERT 77,142,965 5,955,334 23,080,350 3803858 - 26,793,108 23,435,547 - - 160371162
Disposal written off HE /i . - - (e219.029) . - (1399037) . - (76,109401)
At 31 March 2023 #2023E3R318 1,463,709,181 113,151,346 1,232,525,807 155,543,355 60,886,254 133,989,307 189,720,044 710,000 - 3,350,235,29
Net book value RERE

At 31 March 2023 RNEIRIA 2003414595 161786566 173270358 15,629,899 - 270899199 58,312,329 - Lh1980306  3,225,323,292
At 31 March 2022 RN0EIRIA 2170507560 167741900 154147871 12060269 - 127978461 65,134,809 - 532 2942946,3%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Notes:

(0]

(iv)

On 22 May 2000, the Government of the HKSAR granted the Inland Lot No. 8969 at Telegraph
Bay, Pokfulam to the immediate holding company of the Company for a term of 50 years at a
lump sum initial premium of HKD1,000 and an annual rent of an amount equal to 3% of the
rateable value of the said Lot from time to time.

On 24 May 2000, the Company entered into a sub-lease agreement with the immediate
holding company whereby a portion of the Inland Lot No. 8969 at Telegraph Bay, Pokfulam
(the “Cyberport Portion") has been sub-leased to the Company from the immediate holding

company at nil rental.

On 1 December 2022, the Government of the HKSAR granted the Inland Lot No. 9082 at
Telegraph Bay, Pokfulam to the immediate holding company of the Company for a term of 50
years at a lump sum initial premium of HKD1,000 and an annual rent of an amount equal to

3% of the rateable value of the said Lot from time to time.

On 9 December 2022, the Company entered into a sub-lease agreement with the immediate
holding company whereby a portion of the Inland Lot No. 9082 at Telegraph Bay, Pokfulam
(the “Cyberport Portion") has been sub-leased to the Company from the immediate holding
company at nil rental.

The buildings are situated on the leasehold land granted.

Centres equipment represents equipment of Entrepreneurship Centre and Technology Centre

funded by government grant and used for the purpose of the designated projects.

As at 31 March 2023, the fair value of the buildings held for rental (together with the
associated building services and support facilities) and the hotel building amounted to
HKD4,730 million (2022: HKD4,747 million) and HKD402 million (2022: HKD394 million),
respectively. The aggregate carrying value of such assets amounted to HKD2,093 million
(2022: HKD2,171 million) and HKD162 million (2022: HKD168 million), respectively. The fair
value of the buildings held for rental (together with the associated buildings services and
support facilities) as at 31 March 2023 and 2022 were determined based on a valuation

carried out by Colliers International (Hong Kong) Limited, an independent professional valuer.

The fair value of the buildings held for rental (together with the associated building services
and support facilities) and the hotel building falls within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy
and is determined using the income capitalisation approach by discounting the expected

rental income using a capitalisation rate adjusted for the quality and location of the buildings.

G E MRl RMIEE
31 March 2023 20233 H31H

13. % ~ SRRt (@)

MESE -

(i)

(i)

(ii))

(iv)

12000565228 » EBRERFAAABERERAGM
H— B AR SR MDA P ER 8969 S 2 T3t - —TRIEHNIA
B{EA1,00087T 0 BAMALE > MEFNESSHEEN
B R BRI FERR E AR ER% ©

1200055 A248 » ARREERFERABTIL—BOER
#® o BIL > ARERERER AR DR HEAMIB GRS A
89695 H P — ) +ith (TS EBE D)) » BALNHE ©

1202212818 » EEBEEBNRAAS EFERATH
H— B AL FOERMIDAR P B 908258 2 T4 » —RIEHIA
HEEA1,000/87T - ERABEA50E > MEFNHESSERER
3 B R By RO FE SR = B AEL(B 3% ©

72022612898 » AARRERERAB T L—MH AR
# it ARTRBERIZER AT D E MBS AR
90825F AR —E A Lt (TEIBEHEH D) > BAZ S o

ZERFURERBE LM o

PORET B S EET AN EEER 2 X ERED
OB RO Z R E o

72023%3H31 8 » HFHAETF (ERHEMZIBFRFE
IR M) ROEEIET 2 A MEED R 567308 T (2022
F 16T 4TEBIT) K4 028 TT (20224 [ 3.94(8H87T) ° &
FEEZREAEDF520.93 @B T (20224 © 21.71 &8
TT) R 16218 7T (20224F © 1.68EBTT) o RS HELAE
F (EEMERZ IR F IR R T RRIE) 122023 /2022438
SNBZAABENREB LS EGENMS HERYEER
(B8) BRABETZEEETE ©

FEHTIET CERIERM 2 BT RBESRRN) REEIET
ZARBEBRAANBESZHRPZE=HK  HERARAER
EARERE > HAERRACHAERBT L AR FHA
BZEACEEREBASRANRAE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e BRI

31 March 2023 202343831 H

14. LEASES 14. A8

The Group as a lessee FEBEBEBA

The Group has lease contracts for office premises, office equipment, AEBRESEPERNPWAEYZE - MAER
information technology facilities, storage area and accommodation used B BEBARKRNE BFEREEIAHEES
in its operations. Lease of office premises has a lease term of six years, Mo MAEMENHERANFE > MPAER
while office equipment, information technology facilities and storage area - BREREREEENEERARF »
have lease terms of five years, and an accommodation has a lease term BENHEERAME - REBTSHEEFEEH
of two years. There are several lease contracts that include variable lease SHEENRNEESH > HE T E—F i o

payments, which are further discussed below.

(a) Right-of-use assets (a) FREEEE
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and the REBBNFERESEZ REBERERNESHN
movements during the year are as follows: T

As at 1 April 2021 12021 4B 1H 4,273,846 350,430 95,325 1,112,064 5,831,665
Depreciation charge nERZ (1,554,120) (188,671) (95,325) (635,465) (2,473,581)
As at 31 March 2022 and 2022538318 K

as at 1 April 2022 1202248 1H 2,719,726 161,759 - 476,599 3,358,084
Depreciation charge ERY (1,554,120) (136,851) - (476,599) (2,167570)
As at 31 March 2023 12023535318 1,165,606 24,908 - - 1,190,514
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR E M BRI

31 March 2023 202343H31H

14. LEASES (continued) 14. FAE (@
The Group as a lessee (continued) EEEEAEBA (@)
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HESE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during the HEaEZREBRERNEHNT

year are as follows:

2023
HKD
#T
Carrying amount at 1 April R4B1BZEREE 3,534,463 6,067,535
Accretion of interest recognised during the year FANET 2 F RIGIE 47,963 84,848
Payments I (2,302,760) (2,617,920)
Carrying amount at 31 March R3B31HZEREE 1,279,666 3,534,463
Analysed into: DA
Current portion RENER D 1,279,666 2,254,797
Non-current portion IERBNE D - 1,279,666
1,279,666 3,534,463
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 30(a) to HEBGBZIHSNMELRE M BRRMET
the consolidated financial statements. 30(a) W EE ©
(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are as (c) MBmPMEEEIZEH/NT !
follows:

2023
HKD
T
Interest on lease liabilities HE&EMNE 47,963 84,848
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets EREEENERS 2,167,570 2,473,581
Expense relating to short-term leases BRGHARES H
(included in public mission activities expenses) Gt AAREen B H) - 37,688
Variable lease payments not included in the TEtAHEGGESTEZIEHE
measurement of lease liabilities (included in 7 GTAEHMEE H)
other operating expenses) 580,298 478,997
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RIEmPEE 2 EEE 2,795,831 3,075,114
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e BRI AR E M BRI

31 March 2023 2023534831 H 31 March 2023 202353831 H
14. LEASES (continued) 14. 188 @) 14. LEASES (continued) 14. 188 @)
The Group as a lessee (continued) FEBEARBEAN (8 The Group as a lessor SEBEAHEA
(d) Variable lease payments (d) PIEEERMR The Group leases certain buildings (note 13) in Hong Kong under operating AEERBLEHERHEHEEEETIETF (I
The Group has a lease contract for an office equipment that contains REEGE—HMAERENHEESHN » H lease arrangements. The terms of the leases also require the tenants to 5213) c HERRTNERBAZ[ARES -
variable payments based on the meter rate of additional printout. The B ERBEEIMTENAEE ST ERN & pay a security deposit. Rental income recognised by the Group during the BRRITERBELEEMNREE - ZEBRER
term is negotiated by management for the office equipment that is IR o AR B B IR 5L (ST BBt year was HKD228,407,148 (2022: HKD274,900,383), details of which are B2 AEUIA#228,407, 14878 7T (20224 :
used to print without steady usage. Management's objective is to align BEERAENMAERFEETE BSEEZEM included in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements. 274,900,383 7T) » BRIEIEHI 4R e M B iRR M
the lease expense with the additional printout. The following provides FEEES HEEIMTINEEETE o TR 5T4 ©
information on the Group's variable lease payments, including the HEMANERNTERENRZER > 81F
magnitude in relation to fixed payments: HREEENRZIEE : At the end of the reporting period, the undiscounted lease payments RIREER » NEBREETE 5 573 R eI HiEE
receivable by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating KEAER R R B R ITIRA ST 5
leases with its tenants are as follows: B
2023
HKD
AT
Within one year —FRN 208,076,465 197,919,217
Fixed rent EEME 104,000 - 104,000 After one year but within two years —FREMFEA 125,794,188 101,600,930
Variable rent only ELZ e EEE - 106,403 106,403 After two years but within three years MEBE=FNAN 57,957,241 39,316,311
After three years but within four years —FBEMFERN 38,795,692 15,112,133
104,000 106,403 210,403 After four years but within five years MEREBRER 19,974,409 9,580,804
After five years hFER 19,440,120 29,633,651

470,038,115 393,163,046

Fixed rent EEHE 156,000 - 156,000
Variable rent only (ESZNEIE-Fc - 23,080 23,080
156,000 23,080 179,080
In addition, the Group leased a warehouse which contains a variable s> AEEBRA—ESER - HBNESREE
lease payment term that is based on the Group's storage per carton ERTERNBEREEEEMSENEHEE
box in the warehouse. The amount of the variable lease payments TG c MAEENHAETBERER 20
recognised in profit or loss for the current year for the lease is B E (T A473,8958 7T (20224F © 455,91778
HKD473,895 (2022: HKD455,917). 7o) °©
(e) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 25(b) to the (e) HENRERBERETIREG M BRKMEE
consolidated financial statements. 25(b) IR FE ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B ER R MIEE e B SRR MIEE
31 March 2023 20233831 H 31 March 2023 202343831 H
15. CYBERPORT MACRO FUND INVESTMENTS 16. SEHBE

15. HEERRERIEESRE 16. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES

2023 2022 2023 2022
HKD HKD HKD HKD
#T BT T BT
Equity investments designated at fair value EERARBES AHMM2E IS Current assets HEEE
th h oth h ive i ¥ -
rough other comprehensive income ZRABRE Financial assets at amortised cost REIEA AR S RAE E - 49,384,925
- Unlisted ity i t ts, at fai l —ELHRAKE  HARE 119,976,069 263,803,894 ) . . RN
niisted equity Investments, at fair vatue FEmkRiR > RAARE Investments at fair value through profit or loss BARNBESABRZERE 653,239,404 643,010,512
Debt investments at fair value through BARBENABHEZERRE
profit or loss
- Unlisted debt investments, at fair value — FLHEBRE  BARBE 5,876,221 9,465,721 Total w5t 653,239,404 692,395,437
(a) Financial assets at amortised cost (a) HHBIERATIARZ ERIEE
125,852,290 273,269,615
2023 2022
The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at fair value HRAEEDRAZSREBRIEME > HKD HKD
through other comprehensive income as the Group considers these ARG ERA R MISERAABES ARLMEE a5 2
investments to be strategic in nature. Was o a8 7t
During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group did not recognise any B E2023F 3831 HIEFE » ANERE I ARSI IR Listed fixed interest debt securities in Hong Kong  &# EHEEH SEHEES - 49,384,925
dividend income (2022: Nil) from the equity investments held at the end of BRSHRMFAENRERE ZERBKREWRA
the reporting period. (20224 : %) ©
The net book amount is analysed as follows: IREDFEZWT -
The above debt investments were hybrid contracts consisting of a bond LREBRESBABESRRARNTETAERZ Maturing over one year P—tEL TR - _
ivati i ifi i i BEGH o ERGINEARANEBESAER
and an embedded derivative. They were mandatorily classified as financial ttmfnf@ 3 ﬁ%lﬁjA%ﬁAizLT\ T A& Maturing within one year 5 i P EI R B 49.384.925
assets at fair value through profit or loss as their contractual cash flows 2EMEE > FERAESHNRERETIEEAS
are not solely payments of principal and interest. NERERFE °
- 49,384,925
To further extend the Group's entrepreneurial support to scalable start- RHE—FIMAREBHERYBIREZ AIZES
ups, the Group has launched the CMF for Hong Kong-based digital o AEER2017FE A B BRI ERREETH
entrepreneurs in 2017. With an initial size of HKD200 million, the CMF BRBRAELES - B ERBAIEESTBERE Market value of listed debt securities EHmEBEszHE = 50,088,633
aims to provide Cyberport's start-ups with early financing and promote BAMESDT  STEARSBYRIEEREER]
the development of venture capital ecosystem in Hong Kong. In April 2021, MBTRESENREABEELRIRENER - X (b) Investments at fair value through profit or loss (b) BAABESAERIBE
Cyberport had committed to inject an additional amount of HKD200 million 2021448 B RGERBIEERBRXEE
into the CMF and extend the scope to cover Series B and later-stage BRINEEMEATT 0 WRAEBRARBNKRE - 2023 2022
investments. e HKD
AT BIT
Listed fixed interest debt securities: EHEENEEHEES -
- In Hong Kong — E5BER 77,937,431 215,922,704
- Outside Hong Kong — &BEIH 548,350,666 331,857,123
Unlisted but quoted fixed interest debt securities  JE_EMEAREBEE N BEH D 26,951,307 95,230,685
653,239,404 643,010,512
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e ERRMIEE

31 March 2023 202343831 H
TRADE RECEIVABLES

117.

170

Trade receivables FEUEBRTR
Impairment BE

The credit period given to customers is generally 0 to 30 days. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables to
minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancement over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are
non-interest-bearing.

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade receivables
are as follows:

At beginning of year F4)
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) HRRERE (H5Te)
At end of year Fx

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates are
based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments with
similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region, product type, customer
type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit or other forms of credit
insurance). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the
time value of money and reasonable and supportable information that
is available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables
are written off if past due for more than one year and are not subject to
enforcement activity.
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17. FEURBRER
2023
HKD
BT
31,321,571 20,065,753
(3,322,226) (1,322,109)
27,999,345 18,743,644

BTERZIEEH—RA0EIIK - AEEFAE
ERAB G E R U Bl 2 R BN EEE AREE
RIE - BEEFHSREEEENER - 25H
R i ELFE U BR R A R I A (R AR MBI T &
IS ERFHER - BUBIRRABRE °

FEWERFUR ERB R FEEEWT

2023

HKD

ABIT
1,322,109 1,292,484
2,000,117 29,625
3,322,226 1,322,109

FERRSREOBREARFEERETHED
i UG EEREEHRE - BEXDREAFE
PEEER (BRMIBAE - EREE - TR
BRFHRURERBREMEAZEERRZE
BEE) 2ZETR DA ZBIRBEE o
ZetERREERINEER - ERRBEENRR
REQMAESAMBESEMN « BRRRRR
ERRTRA SR FEER - —RMES » B
IRRmERBE—FETRRTATHE BT
DU o

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the
Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at 31 March 2023

AR E M BRI

31 March 2023 202343H31H

17. FEURBRER (@)

T #IAMAEEEBIRRERBRHER(E
BERBEEH :

142023E3H31H

Expected credit loss rate TEHEEBEX 0% 11.07%
Gross carrying amount (HKD) BRE42{E (B7T) 9,779,750 4,585,076
Expected credit losses (HKD) FBHRzEESE (GBT) - 507,352

As at 31 March 2022

15.57% 16.86% 10.61%

3,371,351 13,585,394 31,321,571

524,821 2,290,053 3,322,226
1220223831 H

Expected credit loss rate TEEEEBEX 0%
Gross carrying amount (HKD) BRE42{E (E7T) 9,473,535 2,765,246
Expected credit losses (HKD) FEER(EEEE (Bt) - 234,636

12.03% 16.19% 6.59%
4,320,134 3,506,838 20,065,753
519,833 567,640 1,322,109
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31 March 2023 20233 H31H

18.

172

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Prepayments FE(ITRIE
Lease incentives HEEE
Deposits paid for premises leasing MMERELZ N2 S
Other deposits Hithizs
Other receivables HimE RIS
Impairment HE
Analysed into: baXiF=1n
Non-current portion JERENER >
Current portion mEnER

Impairment of deposits and other receivables

The carrying amount of deposits and other receivables approximated to
their fair value as at 31 March 2023 and 2022. Provision for impairment
on deposits and other receivables is measured as either 12-month
expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit losses, depending on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. If a significant increase in credit risk of a receivable has
occurred since initial recognition, then impairment is measured as lifetime
expected credit losses. In assessing the expected credit loss of deposits
and other receivables, management considers various factors such as the
ageing of the balances, existence of disputes, recent historical payment
patterns, any other available information concerning the creditworthiness
of counterparties and forward-looking information. Management uses
this information to determine whether a provision for impairment is
required either for a specific counterparty or for certain counterparties’
balances that have similar loss patterns overall. The provision for
impairment of other receivables at 31 March 2023 was HKD8,497,518 (2022:
HKD8,497,518).
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18. FAMIRRIE « ERHEMEKRIA

2023 2022
HKD HKD

BT BT
10,816,918 18,725,252
4,319,968 11,451,646
- 685,008
1,591,899 1,544,830
25,394,095 28,369,592
42,122,880 60,776,328
(8,497,518) (8,497,518)
33,625,362 52,278,810
2,432,671 5,163,496
31,192,691 47,115,314
33,625,362 52,278,810

Y& R H A FE R IE Z i (B
F22023F % 20223831 H » R EME
B REEREAABERS - B REMAER
MIBZ RERER 2B EREEHEENE/E
HEEEBEE > BEEERR BT HERUREK
EBEEABIEINME o MEKRRIEBEZ EERKREN
FHERUR KRG > AR EREREREES
B2 o RS REMBWRIEZ FBHREE
BER > SEEERZERNE - FIUNERRE
EEEEAMD  FHEBESZMRERN - BRZHA
B9 15 2 A BA B9 1E fa] E 4t AT 15 & 1F A R Al BE 4 &
o BEEMNAELEENFAERSTEAE
ERZHANERE FEEUGERANETRS
HH 2 AEREHBERE ° 122023538318 »
H A FEURRIE 2 R B 35 £ 8,497,518 77T (2022
£ 1 8497,518587T) ©

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances R MIRITHEE

Non-pledged time deposit with an original maturity

of less than three months when acquired EIRIRERER

Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity

of more than three months when acquired HEIRIRERTER

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods of between one month
and one year depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective time deposit rates. The bank balances
and time deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.

20. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Contract liabilities aHaE
Other payables HhpELHRIE
Accruals FESt &R
Receipt in advance TR
Government grants BT HEn &
Provisions B
Retention payable S REE
Notes:

(a)  Details of contract liabilities are as follows:

Short-term advances received from customers A& F W2 FZHIE

Income from hotel operation TEEEERA

The increase in contract liabilities in 2023 was mainly due to the increase in short-term
advances received from customers at the end of the year.

(b)  Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term of three months.

G E MRl RMIEE
31 March 2023 20233 H31H
19. RERIREEEIER

2023 2022
HKD HKD
#T BT

114,725,748 143,841,606

RESHRIMAR IR =ZEAZ

143,389,589 125,560,941

RESHRISHARS=EANLY

68,279,468 24,932,864

326,394,805 294,335,411

RITRERIES BIRTERFRLUFSHF R BRRA
B o EHERRFAERZFRERFRME > FNR
HRNF—ERE—F1%F » LUZBZERFARF
RERIAE - RTEERERERFATALEEL
s B EEREFZIRT -

20. HfthfE{ITRIAR & A

2023 2022

Notes HKD HKD
M E BT BT
(a) 2,040,980 1,106,162
(b) 193,436 4,127,448
176,025,519 152,187,006
16,203,413 5,638,205

50,165,008 61,824,524

8,163,792 8,163,792

- 2,876,000

252,792,148 235,923,137

Ff5E :

a)  ARAEFEOT:

2023 2022
HKD HKD
T BT
2,040,980 1,106,162

12023 F R B AN EZ B EEF IR Z EBRIN A
FERIGIFAE

) HtEIRERRE  FHHRA=M@EA -

©
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31 March 2023 20233831 H

21.

22,

23.

174

RENTAL AND OTHER DEPOSITS

Included in rental deposits are amounts of HKD44,755,419 (2022:
HKD36,327,156) which are not expected to be settled within one year.

DEVELOPMENT MAINTENANCE FUND

It represents a fund received by the Group in accordance with the
terms of a project agreement entered into among the Company, the
immediate holding company, HKCADL, Pacific Century Cyberworks
Limited (now renamed as PCCW Limited) and Cyber-Port Limited on 17
May 2000 (the “Project Agreement”). Pursuant to the Project Agreement,
the purpose of the fund is for upkeep and maintenance of the common
telecommunications, media and information technology facilities available
to the tenants and visitors (the “Shared Cyberport facilities").

Upon acquisition of relevant assets for replacements, the costs of the
acquired assets will be transferred from the Development Maintenance
Fund (the "DMF") account to the Capital Reserve account in accordance
with the Group's accounting policy.

During the year, the Shared Cyberport facilities of HKD7,403,488 (2022:

HKD8,545,780) were acquired and funded by the DMF. Accordingly, this
amount has been transferred from the DMF to the Capital Reserve account.

SHARE CAPITAL

Issued and fully paid: BETREE

984,000,002 (2022: 538,000,002) ordinary shares
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21.

22.

23.

HEREftES

HERcOEERFTER —EREMZRIE
44,755,419 7T (20224F : 36,327,156 7T) ©

BRIEEES
ZEESRAEERBEAALT - EEERA
&) » HKCADL ~ BB SEE HARAF (GRIBEN
BHARAR) REFABARATNN 200065817
BFrEsT 2 BB st 801 (Tet8UiHaR) 2 E
FrURER 2 B o IRIFETEI RS 0 ZBEESRER
BEREEEBA RS EERAZEAEN  HER
BRI (TS B ARM) ©

REAEBZ EHR > RBEEEREEMUEE
g EREEEZHACEREEES (TEE
MERS)) IRPBREEARHERS o

FR > &EEA7,403,488787T (20224 | 8,545,780
BIT) ZHIEBHARMEHERECEESEE
TRMHEEE - Bt » ZEZFEEREREEES
ER T EARERE o

984,000,0028% (20224 :
538,000,002A%) &iEA%

A7
2023 2022
HKD HKD
ETT BT
984,000,002 538,000,002

23.

24,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR TSR R M EE
31 March 2023 202343431 H
23. iR#& (48)
At B R ASE AR T

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

A summary of the movements in the Group's share capital is as follows:

Number of
shares Share
in issue capital
BETROKAE ;:2: 3
HKD
BT
At 1 April 2021 R2021F481H 300,000,002 300,000,002
New issues T 238,000,000 238,000,000
At 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2023 12202243831 H %2023F481H 538,000,002 538,000,002
New issues (Note) WEET (MFsE) 446,000,000 446,000,000
At 31 March 2023 $£202353831H 984,000,002 984,000,002

MizE @ 1220226 150 » BRI BTNERBEARRE KRR
17446,000,000 % & iBA% > 1S FR1STRIEL46,000,000787T ©

Note: On 15 June 2022, 446,000,000 ordinary shares were issued at HKD1 per share to the existing
shareholders of the Company, which resulted in proceeds of HKD446,000,000.

RESERVES 24. (#fE
FEARKEERBEEE RESEREED

2IINGERDEBE o

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for the
current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IEE BRI IFE BRI
31 March 2023 202343831 H
25. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 25. {2 &8IRE R ERMIsE

(a) MEZFBFRELEEES

31 March 2023 202343H31H
26. COMMITMENTS 26. 7Kz
FEBMPNIREHAFE N T E A o

(a) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the

176

statement of cash flows is as follows:

SFAGRERERBRZBERT R MBI
s =

2023

HKD

BT
Within operating activities EREFEHA 654,261 601,533
Within financing activities EREEER 2,254,797 2,533,072
2,909,058 3,134,605

Cyberport 2022/23 Annual Report

reporting period.

Group in respect of their services rendered to the Group are disclosed
in notes 7 and 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

2023
HKD
BT
Contracted, but not provided for [ERENEES L 330,563,164 799,836,652
27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 27. AR5
(@) The Company is wholly owned by the Government of the HKSAR (@) ARATHEBFEESEENEERREE
via The Financial Secretary Incorporated. In accordance with 2EHEE - REBER B ARER 2 &E
i i i SIEBEETEERIE 245 E
At T April 2021 82021 4E1E 117501104 6,067,535 revised HKAS 24 Re[ated. "Darty D/sclos.ures |s§u.ed.by thfe HKICPA, T%%‘ STEERISE sﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁ]z&’%z%ﬁm
o o B government-related entities and their subsidiaries, directly or MHASEAREEITEZ BT ~ HEE
Changes from financing cash flows BERE R BRE) 32,237,246 (2.533,072) indirectly controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by FINZHEAFE BT EMEE RN B
Realisation of government grants BB & 23R (87,913,82¢) - the Government of the HKSAR are defined as related parties of the RE MREAREB RS o REZ
Interest expense FlELy - 84,848 Group. On that basis, related parties include the immediate holding Bt S SEERERARRENEBA
. S _ = JN=] N S = e FRE /N
Interest paid classified as operating cash flows SEAGEES RS> OHHE B (84.848) company and its subsidiaries (other than the Company), government B (RRATBRIN) ~ BUSERIE RS & EHH B A
related entities and their subsidiaries, other entities and corporations B~ AEBREEGISH A MNEARTE 2 HAih
in which the Group is able to control or exercise significant influence BRERCEURAERZTEBEAS ©
At 31 March 2022 and at 1 April 2022 202043831 AR 202244818 61,824,524 3,534,463 and key management personnel of the Group.
Changes from financing cash flows RERETEEE 71,501,310 (2,254,797)
Reatication of - (63.160.826) During the year ended 31 March 2023, approximately % (2022: 4%) BE2023F383N HILFE » REFERHE
ealisation of government grants HRBI= R T B of the Group's revenue was rental income, building management Bz HEWA ~ 1 8F BRI K E MR
Interest expense MEXH - 47,963 income and other facilities income derived from the Government of WAKME A E B WA Z 6% (20224F & 4%) ©
Interest paid classified as operating cash flows DEAKEREREZEMHE - (47,963) the HKSAR. All these services are conducted in the normal course of FRE ZERFIIEER =B BIERIEAER
business and in accordance with the Group's pricing policy. ZEEBERETT °
At 31 March 2023 12023438318 50,165,008 1279,666 (b) The balances with the immediate holding company and fellow (b) EEBERATKEBERWERARZAAEERTA
subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. IR « RERREREE o
(b) Total cash outflow for leases (b) HEZRSRHAELE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the consolidated (c) Details of the compensation of the key management personnel of the 0 AEEFEEEASRARERREREME

S ZMERFIEIN AR S MR R ET
T8I EE -
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eV BRERNEE

31 March 2023 202343H31H
28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

178

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments at

the end of the reporting period are as follows:

31 March 2023
Financial assets

Deferred rental receivables
Cyberport Macro Fund investments
Investments in securities

Trade receivables

Financial assets included
in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables

Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities

Trade payables

Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals

Rental and other deposits

IBLEKES
HISBREAXESRE
HHRE

FERERR

STABATUE « FE M
EYREZ 2REE

i G YN=TERE]
RERREFEERR

Amount due to the immediate holding company

Lease liabilities
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28. HEHBFNEMIR
SRS T BN REBRZRAGDT :

2023%F3H31H
ETRMEE

- = = 6,525,764 6,525,764
119,976,069 = 5,876,221 = 125,852,290
- 653,239,404 = - 653,239,404
- - - 27,999,345 27,999,345
= = = 18,488,476 18,488,476
o - - 201,442 201,442
- - - 326,394,805 326,394,805
119,976,069 653,239,404 5,876,221 379,609,832 1,158,701,526
ERER

FEITRRR
StARMENTERES BBz SREE
HEkEMEE
FEERZERARIA
HE&E

72,459,276
192,436,064
103,973,471
254,303,568

1,279,666

624,452,045

31 March 2022
Financial assets

Deferred rental receivables
Cyberport Macro Fund investments
Investments in securities

Trade receivables

Financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits
and other receivables

Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities

Trade payables

Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals

Rental and other deposits

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MR

31 March 2023 202343831 H
28. HERHEINNERTA (@

2022%E3H31H
SREE

EERBES
YBAREZETREA
EHERE

FEUERR

SEATRRUE  REREM
EmE, SHEE

ERRZRBARNE
ReRRLFERE

Amount due to the immediate holding company

Lease liabilities

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)

- - - 10,453,908 10,453,908
263,803,894 - 9,465,721 - 273,269,615
- 643,010,512 - 49,384,925 692,395,437
- - - 18,743,644 18,743,644
- - - 22,098,154 22,098,154
- - - 1,938,909 1,938,909
- - - 294,335,411 294,335,411
263,803,894 643,010,512 9,465,721 396,954,951 1,313,235,078
TRIEE

FEATRRRR
STAEMENTIERESERZ EREE

45,531,974

161,787,716

HEREMEE
BN ERERABRIEA
HEER

94,287,294
254,303,568
3,534,463

559,445,015
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e B ER R MIEE
31 March 2023 20233831 H

29.

180

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial instruments,
other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably approximate to
fair values, are as follows:

29. EMITAZARBERAREESTR

FEBTHRTAZIRMERAABE GREEHR
AREESEREZERITERSSN O :

Carrying amounts Fair values
BREE AREE
2023 2022 2023 2022
HKD HKD HKD HKD
BT BT BT BT
Financial assets ERMEE
Equity investments designated IEERADBEFT AEM
at fair value through other 2EW@mZ BRAERE
comprehensive income 119,976,069 263,803,894 119,976,069 263,803,894
Debt investments at fair value BAREBEFAERY
through profit or loss BERRE 5,876,221 9,465,721 5,876,221 9,465,721
Investments in securities EERE 653,239,404 692,395,437 653,239,404 693,099,145

779,091,694 965,665,052 779,091,694 966,368,760

The Group has assessed that the fair values of deferred rental receivables,
trade receivables, financial assets included in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, balances with fellow
subsidiaries and the immediate holding company, trade payables, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals, and rental and other
deposits approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short-
term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale. The following method and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
value:

The fair values of the lease liabilities have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently available for
instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The
changes in fair values as a result of the Group's own non-performance risk
for lease liabilities as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 were assessed
to be insignificant.
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FEEEMERLERKESE - BUERR » StATRNR
B BERAMBUERZEHREE - REKFSSE
BEHE  ARANBARDRERERAD ZEHT &
ERFR ~ STARMBARERESERZE/MER
HERAEMZEZ AABEREREERS » T2H
RZETRREHANEIE -

TRHEEREMAEZ ARBENINES BE (GRi8%
BEHERN ETZENRZTRIBTANSEA
iR o TOAERBRRAR G AAEE !

HEaBEZARNBENERRFAENEEOUER
EERRMGTEHNTREZFIE > BEHERKRE
MEIEMEE - HAEEASR2023F3831 B
202243 A3 HtiA BB BERENTBARRMELEN
ARBEEIWTEAREK °

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of ten (2022: three) unlisted equity investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income as at 31 March 2023
and 31 March 2022 have been estimated using the market-based valuation
technique based on assumptions that are not supported by observable
market prices or rates. The valuation requires the Directors to determine
comparable public companies (peers) based on industry, size, leverage
and strategy, and to calculate an appropriate price multiple, such as
enterprise value to sales ("EV/S") multiple, for each comparable company
identified. The multiple is calculated by dividing the enterprise value of
the comparable company by sales measure. The Directors believe that
the estimated fair values resulting from the valuations carried out by an
independent professional valuer, which are recorded in the consolidated
statement of financial position, and the related changes in fair values,
which are recorded in other comprehensive income, are reasonable, and
that they were the most appropriate values at the end of the reporting
period.

The fair values of nine (2022: thirteen) unlisted equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income as at 31
March 2023 and 31 March 2022 have been estimated using the recent
market transaction prices.

The fair values of one (2022: two) unlisted debt investments at fair value
through profit or loss as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 have been
estimated using either the market-based valuation technique based on
assumptions that are not supported by observable market prices or rates.
The valuation requires the Directors to determine comparable public
companies (peers) based on industry, size, leverage and strategy, and to
calculate an appropriate price multiple, such as EV/S multiple, for each
comparable company identified. The Directors believe that the estimated
fair value resulting from the valuation carried out by an independent
professional valuer, which is recorded in the consolidated statement
of financial position, and the related changes in fair value, which are
recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, are reasonable,
and that they were the most appropriate values at the end of the reporting
period.

The fair value of one (2022: nil) unlisted debt investment at fair value
through profit or loss as at 31 March 2023 has been estimated using the
recent market transaction prices.

The fair values of listed debt investments are based on quoted market
prices.

During the period, the Group disposed of a fair value through other
comprehensive income investment with a net proceed of approximately
HKD14.5 million. Accordingly, a loss had been recognised in other
comprehensive income.

e B SRR MIEE
31 March 2023 202343431 H
29. EMITAZARBERIAABEEZR
€=)
720233831 B RK%2022E3831H » I5EE AR
BEFAEMEEKE 2 +IE (20224F | =) 3F
EHERABRE ARBECRBUTIEARER
BRI REBELFATEETERERIE R
REITE o EITHER > EEASRBTE
RE - BERRERREECTLERARATE (A
) UESHHNTERA RS ESEIER
B8 (Gl EEBEE) o ZEHIRTERA
BN E BRI E S BRTMetE - EED
7 AR BASR R FR U8 1L B 2 ik (E AT AT 2 ik 5t
AREE GIANGEHBERIR) RAREBEZE
MEE GtARMREKS) BAE  TARSHE
HIfE(E o

1202343831 H 202243831 H 7 I5EHRAR
BESFAREMEEKE ZNIE (20224 | +=1H)
FLMRAREZ AABEERBABEHTERR
BIEH ST

R202343831 B Kk2022438318 » BAAE
Bt AIBRZ—1E (2022£F : WIE) FLHEHER
B AABECRBHBGEESE > RIEEIEH
AERMENEXRL G2 BRETME o BTG
B > EEAZRBITE - TR - BIERRRSE
EEALLRARAR (AZ) > wHEEBE
AR AT EGEBRES (FlntEEER
) c EHRA > NREPRABB UL EEGHER
a2 AT AREBE GEAGEMBERIR) KA
ABEZEBES GtALGSERR) BEE I
AROEZEE

12202338318 » HAABESAHMBRZ
—HF EHEBREZAREE (2022F 1 F) B
RIS B IEH ST o

EHEBREZ ANBERTSRESESH -

R AEBHERAABES ARMEE R
ZRE - SRR EAA1.4508 87T > AR
Hth2EU B 1R
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29. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 29. 2RI TEHZAAEBHEHEAABHEEHR
INSTRUMENTS (continued) (48)

LR %50 2023 8 % 2022463 831 A em T AfH
financial instruments together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at BEZEAFAHRBRHAHBHREERNEEHRKE
31 March 2023 and 2022: D

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the valuation of

As at 31 March 2023 122023%F3H31H

Valuation Significant
technique unobservable input Amount Sensitivity of fair value to the input

fHERE BEAFUBRRHARE #E ARBEERBABIEZHEE

Unlisted equity investment  Valuation EV/S multiple of peers 3.0x 1% increase/decrease in multiple would
multiples result in increase/decrease in fair value
by HKD63,000/HKD63,000
FEEHRALE HEFE FZE B EEEEEH 3.0 BEEF TR % ER AN EEEN
/163,000, 63,0008 7T
Discount for lack of 22.8% 1% increase/decrease in discount would
marketability result in decrease/increase in fair value

by HKD85,000/HKD85,000
BREmigREN TS 22.8% FELEF TR ER AR EGERL
1 1N85,00078 7T 85,00078 7T

The discount for lack of marketability represents the amounts of premiums 44 = Fig i@ M > T BIE A EEE T HIEREEES
and discounts determined by the Group that market participants would B E@EEEEBHHEERITESE o
take into account when pricing the investments.
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INSTRUMENTS (continued)
As at 31 March 2023 (continued)

Valuation
technique

{&E7S*

Unlisted equity investment  Valuation
multiples

FELHRARE (EREREE

Unlisted equity investment  Valuation
multiples

FELTREREA HEREHN

Unlisted equity investment  Valuation
multiples

FEEBRAKRE (ERENEE

Unlisted equity investment  Valuation
multiples

FFLEBRARE HEEH

Significant
unobservable input

EATAHRREAYE

EV/S multiple of peers

[EIESS(EES YRS

Discount for lack of
marketability

RZ IS MIENE 24T

EV/S multiple of peers

FEEEEEEH

Discount for lack of
marketability

BRZ ISR iR

EV/S multiple of peers

EIESTESEYEREE

Discount for lack of
marketability

BRI i

EV/S multiple of peers

[EIESTSE A= o8

Discount for lack of
marketability

BRZ I RIE N 2 4T

Amount

i€

1.33x

1.331%

15.8%

15.8%

1.5x

1.51%

11.4%

11.4%

2.0x

2.01%

22.8%

22.8%

4.7x

4.71%

11.4%

11.4%

rE B IRARMIEE

31 March 2023 20233 H31H

29. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 29. £ TEZAABEHEAABEEE
(@)

12023538318 (@)

Sensitivity of fair value to the input

ARBEHBABEZHRE

1% increase/decrease in multiple would
result in increase/decrease in fair value
by HKD14,000/HKD 14,000

FHEFH TR ERANBEEN
14,0007 7T, 14,0008 7T

1% increase/decrease in discount would
result in decrease/increase in fair value
by HKD18,000/HKD 18,000

B b7 TRI%EER A AEERLD
17018,0007%7T 18,0007 7T

1% increase/decrease in multiple would

result in increase/decrease in fair value
by HKD51,000/HKD51,000

B EF TEI%RERAAEEELMN,
51,0007, 51,0008 7T

1% increase/decrease in discount would
result in decrease/increase in fair value
by HKD57,000/HKD57,000

LT TGRSR AR EERD
181157,00038 7T 57,0008 7T

1% increase/decrease in multiple would
result in increase/decrease in fair value
by HKD212,000/HKD213,000

BT/ TR%IS SR AR EEL
H212212,0007T /213,000 7

1% increase/decrease in discount would
result in decrease/increase in fair value
by HKD321,000/HKD319,000

g EH TFEIREERAREBERLD
1210321,00078 7% 319,000/ 7T

1% increase/decrease in multiple would
result in increase/decrease in fair value
by HKD1,000/HKD1,000

B LT TR SR AR EERD
Ai11,00078 7T, 1,00087T

1% increase/decrease in discount would

have no impact to the result

LA TERI%S T EEREATE
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31 March 2023 20233 H31H
29. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 29. 2RI TEHZAAEBHEHEAABHEEHR

184

INSTRUMENTS (continued)
As at 31 March 2023 (continued)

Valuation
technique

fEfEA %

Unlisted equity investment  Valuation
multiples

FLTRARE HEE

Unlisted equity investment  Valuation

multiples
FEEMRALE HEFH
Unlisted debt investment Valuation

multiples
FLHEHBERE fHEEE

Unlisted equity investment  Valuation
multiples

JFEEmRARE HEEH

Unlisted equity investment  Adjusted net
asset value
FEEHRALE L
BEFE
Unlisted equity investment  Adjusted net
asset value
JEETRAKRE REE
HEFE

Cyberport 2022/23 Annual Report

Significant
unobservable input

EATARRH AR

EV/S multiple of peers

R EEBEEEE

Discount for lack of
marketability

BRZ I MBI 4T

EV/S multiple of peers

R EEBEEEEN

Discount for lack of
marketability

BRZ WIS MBI 478

EV/S multiple of peers

FIFBEEEEE

Discount for lack of
marketability

BRZ S RBE I8

EV/S multiple of peers

FFEBEEEFR

Discount for lack of
marketability

Rz miB 2 2
Not applicable ("N/A")

FEA

Amount

#E

5.8x

5.81Z

11.4%

11.4%

7.95x

7.95%

22.8%

22.8%

1.83x

1.831%

22.8%

22.8%

2.79x

2.791%
23.0%

23.0%
N/A

(%)

122023538318 (&)

Sensitivity of fair value to the input

ARBEERBABIEZHEE

1% increase/decrease in multiple would
result in increase/decrease in fair value
by HKD46,000/HKD46,000

BEEF TR % ER AN EEEN,
/L 46,000787T 46,0008 7T

1% increase/decrease in discount would
result in decrease/increase in fair value
by HKD92,000/HKD92,000

B LA TRI%EER A AEERLD
1#1192,0007% 7T, 92,0007 7T

1% increase/decrease in multiple would
result in increase/decrease in fair value
by HKD142,000/HKD 142,000

B8 EFA TRI%FHERAABEEM,
1 142,00077T 7 142,00078 7T

1% increase/decrease in discount would
result in decrease/increase in fair value
by HKD305,000/HKD303,000

B LEFA TEI%EERAREERLD
1%$0305,00078 7T 303,00078 7T

1% increase/decrease in multiple would
result in increase/decrease in fair value
by HKD54,000/HKD54,000

B8 EF TRI%FER A AEEEMN,
V54,000787T 54,0007 7T

1% increase/decrease in discount would
result in decrease/increase in fair value
by HKD76,000/HKD76,000

g EF TR ERAREERLD
124076,0007%7% . 76,0008 7T

1% increase/decrease in multiple would
have no impact to the result

EHEF TSI TERTATE

1% increase/decrease in discount would
have no impact to the result

ELEH  TEI%EASERTRTE

1% increase/decrease in multiple would

have no impact to the result

B LT TR A EERERTE

1% increase/decrease in multiple would
have no impact to the result

BEHEFA  TRI%E T EGREATE
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31 March 2023 20233 H31H

29. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 29. £RiTEZAABEEAABEE R

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

As at 31 March 2022

Unlisted equity investment

FELHRERE

The discount for lack of marketability represents the amounts of premiums
and discounts determined by the Group that market participants would

Valuation
technique

{&E7S*

Valuation
multiples

HEEH

Significant
unobservable input

EATAHRREAYE

P/S multiple of peers

BT E R

Discount for lack of
marketability

BRZ ISR iR

take into account when pricing the investments.

Unlisted equity investment

FELEBRAKRE

Unlisted equity investment

FFLEBREARE

Unlisted equity investment

FFLEBRARE

Unlisted debt investment

FFLEHEHRE

Valuation
technique

{&ER*

Option model
pricing
model

AREBER

Recent
transaction

RIS

Probability
weighting
method

B %

Binomial tree
pricing
model

—EfR
EBEREE

Significant
unobservable input

EAFTAHRRAALE

Volatility

LIES

Risk free rate

R

P/S multiple of peers

[B1E eE:=EEd 514

Discount applied to to
the transaction price
pending completion

RIEMRZER HTE

Percentage change of
market capitalisation

HERD L

Risk free rate

ERERANE

Amount

i€

3.5x

3.51F

20%

20%

Amount

LEr

64.7%

64.7%

2.3%

2.3%

5%

5%

50%

50%

(0.58%)

(0.58%)

0.5%

0.5%

(&)

122022%3H31H

Sensitivity of fair value to the input

ARBEHBABEZHRE

1% increase/decrease in multiple would
result in increase/decrease in fair value
by HKD13,000/HKD13,000

B8 EFTEI%RERANEELM,
/113,000 7T, 13,0008 7T

1% increase/decrease in discount would
result in decrease/increase in fair value
by HKD66,000/HKD66,000

g EH S TFERIwEERARBERLD
18 1066,00078 7T, 66,0007 7T

REZMERBEZTREAEEBET RS EEES
RETEEREE RIS ERITESER

Sensitivity of fair value to the input

ARBEEHBABRZHRE

1% increase/decrease in volatility would
result in increase/decrease in fair value
by HKD56,000/HKD56,000

REE LT TR SR AR EEEN
7H2156,000/8 7T, 56,0007 7T

1% increase/decrease in risk free rate
would result in increase/decrease in fair
value by HKD56,000/HKD56,000

WERFIE L7/ TR I%SERAAEE
1810,/ /156,000 7T 56,0008 7

1% increase/decrease in multiple would
result in increase/decrease in fair value
by HKD96,000/HKD96,000

BH LT TSR AMEELN
96,0007 7T 96,0008 7T

1% increase/decrease in discount would
result in decrease/increase in fair value
by HKD600,000/HKD600,000

LT TGRSR AR EERL
1811600,000787T 600,000 7T

1% increase/decrease in risk free rate
would have no impact to the result

ERRFELA S THRI%ETEEH
FRRE

1% increase/decrease in risk free rate
would have no impact to the result

ERBRFELA TR TEEH
ESOEZ
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29. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 29. ERTEAZAABERAABESR
INSTRUMENTS (continued) (#8)
Fair value hierarchy RAEBEEZER
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the TRETAERETHMIAZ ANBESTEER :
Group's financial instruments:

BARBEANEZEE
R2023%F3H31H

Assets measured at fair value:
As at 31 March 2023

Equity investments designated EERANBES AEM

at fair value through other 2EWEZBREAEE

comprehensive income - 87,397,789 32,578,280 119,976,069
Debt investments at fair value BARBESFAEBEZ

through profit or loss BHKRE - - 5,876,221 5,876,221
Investments in securities BHERE 626,288,097 26,951,307 - 653,239,404

626,288,097 114,349,096 38,454,501 779,091,694
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31 March 2023 202343H31H

29. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 29. ERiTHZAABHERAABHEZLHE

INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Assets measured at fair value: (continued)

As at 31 March 2022

(%)

RABEER (@)
BARBENEZEE | (8)
7202253831 H

Equity investments designated
at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Debt investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Investments in securities

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 for financial assets (2022: Nil). The
movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 are as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through other

EERARBESARM
EEWmZ RERE

BRAREESFABRZ
BEHKRE -
EHRE 547,779,827

227,270,824 36,533,070 263,803,894

- 9,465,721 9,465,721
95,230,685 - 643,010,512

547,779,827

322,501,509 45,998,791 916,280,127

comprehensive income or profit or loss: BamZ EMBEE !
At 1 April W4g1H
Transfer from Level 2 during the year FRNEEE R
Transfer to Level 2 during the year FREAE R

Total losses recognised in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss

Total (loss)/gain recognised in other

comprehensive income

At 31 March

FR - HBEMEENS > F—REF - RBLES
BAMNBESE (20226F | ) - F=MAZRABEE

BonBEESFARtEEEEmE

RiREEm AN 2 IR

REM2EREEDRZ (§8),

W an k8 AR

MW3A31H

STEEEIT
2023
HKD
T
45,998,791 24,394,914
135,144,726 37,201,654
- (16,433,390)
(3,589,500) (84,334)
(139,099,516) 919,947
38,454,501 45,998,791
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29.

30.

188

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Liabilities measured at fair value:

As at 31 March 2023

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value as
at 31 March 2023.

As at 31 March 2022
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value as
at 31 March 2022.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for
financial liabilities (2022: Nil).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(a) Financial risk factors
The Group's principal financial instruments comprise investments
in securities, equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, debt investments at fair value through profit
or loss and cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to finance for the Group's operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
credit risk, equity price risk, liquidity risk and currency risk. The
Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks
and they are summarised below.

Credit risk

All the Group's cash and cash equivalents are held in major financial
institutions located in Hong Kong, which management believes are of
high credit quality. The Group has policies in place to evaluate credit
risk when accepting new business and to limit its credit exposure to
individual customers.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum exposure
to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which is mainly
based on past due information unless other information is available
without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as at
31 March. For listed debt investments, the Group also monitors them
by using external credit ratings. The amounts presented are gross
carrying amounts for financial assets.
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29.

30.

EMTIAZARBERAABESSR
(&)

NABEER (&)

BRAMNBEFEZEE !

FR202343531 H

AEEP2023FE3H31 BAEEFMIRA A BES
EZEMEME -

1202243531 H
NEEP 202253831 it EEAIIEA A BE
BEHEE -

FR REMAEms  F—REFE KB
EEBAAGENE > TESANEHE =&
(20224 : #) o

MHREEEBREREE

(a) MBREEREZE
FEBZIESMTABERESKE BA
ABESARMEERTZZRAKE - BA
ABESABRGZZEFREURFEREE
FEEH ZEEMIBEZIEANERE
ERZEERMHES -

rERTMTIAEEZTERBRAEER
B RERAR ABETARMEEER
EEREBEAHEEERERBRR 2K
5o BHIN o

EClEN
FEBEMARERASTFERBIIFHNE
BERREEERRFZEBIEZSRE
1% o AEEBFIEEER - MEHE AT ES
2 58 ER KRR EMAZREEGZR
ZEERRE °

REBEIFR DGR DIE
TRETEANRAEREENRZEEERER
EeEERR (XERBERERSEE > K
FEEthE R BAN HIB 2 A S R A
15) » UKRN3A3NBZERDIEER D © Ht
EHEFBREMS » AEBTERINEE
SPARETTERIE - FTETIHMATMEEZ IR
E#RE -

(continued)
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I E RN
31 March 2023 20233 H31H
30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 30. H#EISEIEHERBE &)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

As at 31 March 2023

Trade receivables’
Deferred rental receivables”

Financial assets included
in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables*

Amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries

- Not yet past due
Cash and cash equivalents

- Not yet past due

e AR
EEFEULAE S

SEATEMRER S BER
HitfElRIEZ
THEE

FEWEZ KB ARRIE

— AR
RERREEEEE
— A REH

(a) HBREERZE (&)
EERR (&)
RERRREXSDEESE (&)

72023%3H31H

12-month
ECLs
12{8 B F84A Lifetime ECLs
5ERHE 2HFENREEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
PR — = PR = b 85t
HKD HKD HKD HKD HKD
#T BT BT #T BT
- - - 31,321,571 31,321,571
6,525,764 - - - 6,525,764
18,488,476 8,497,518 - - 26,985,994
201,442 - - - 201,442
326,394,805 - - - 326,394,805
351,610,487 8,497,518 - 31,321,571 391,429,576
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31 March 2023 202343831 H 31 March 2023 202343831 H
30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 30. MR EEEHERKE (&) 30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 30. MRS EEBERKE (&)

(continued) (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued) (a) MBRKREZE (&) (a) MBEMEEZR (&)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

190

Credit risk (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

As at 31 March 2022

FERRE (&)
BREARRFR DR (B)

12022331 H

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the value of underlying individual
securities. The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from
individual equity investments classified as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income (note
15) as at 31 March 2023.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 10% change
in the fair values of the equity investments to which the Group has
significant exposure at the end of the reporting period, with all other
variables held constant and before any impact on tax. For the purpose

of this analysis, the impact is deemed to be on the fair value reserve.

BB R

BB BRI A A58 A A B E R MR E Bl 58
FZ BEESHTMEEZ R o 1220235438
3 H > AEEEHZ RERKRKEHEA
ERAANBESAEMEER G ZRAIRE
Z BRI A E (isE15) ©

TERETRBSHRESEBRREERRRKRZ
RAREANBEESET10% (FrA At
ERFTEERSAETARNBLEN) 28
RE - BUEDNNES » BRARERERER
AEEREBER -

Investments in securities* BHEE 49,384,925 - - - 49,384,925
Trade receivables’ FEUBR T - - - 20,065,753 20,065,753
Deferred rental receivables*  IEFLFEUFAE" 10,453,908 - - - 10,453,908
Financial assets included FPATERRUE ~ BER
in prepayments, deposits HEhElRIEZ
and other receivables* SREE 22,098,154 8497518 - - 30595672 As at 31 March 2023 12023537315
Amounts due from fellow EREENBASZE Unlisted equity investments: FELHRAKE
subsidiaries - Equity investments designated at fair value —EERAABESAEMEARGZZ
- Not yet past due — MkimE 1,938,909 _ _ _ 1,938,909 through other comprehensive income RAREE 119,976,069 11,997,607
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEER
- Not yet past due — Wik 294,335,411 - - ~ 294335411 As at 31 March 2022 12022438318
Unlisted equity investments: FLEHRARE !
278,211 307 8497518 B 20065753 406774578 - Equity investments designated at fair value —TEEE’&?EE@‘EH\E%%EWEZ
through other comprehensive income RAKE 263,803,894 26,380,389
For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified approach for ThAE BRI EE 2 EERT S - BRI O o eerEE

impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

i The credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be “normal” when they are
not past due and there is no information indicating that the financial assets had a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality

of the financial assets is considered to be "doubtful”.
Details in respect of the Group's exposure to credit risk arising from

trade receivables are disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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fEREsH B 2 BN ARG M TS IR SE 17458 ©

* TMEEZEEERTHAOE  BURENETSE
WEEZEERRB NS RBLRABIEMERES
TE®) - BRIERMEEZERERRAS (AR

ERAEERBIRRZ EERBRZFE 1
IRE MR 1 TIRE -
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e MRl RMIEE
31 March 2023 20233 H31H

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(continued)

30. HHEAKREREREREE (@

(a) Financial risk factors (continued) (a) MFBEEEZR (&)
Liquidity risk mENE & bR
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its current TENE & R R AN B R AEEE I AR Z BN EA
obligations when they fall due. Prudent liquidity risk management BHEZERE  BEZADETRAMREESE
includes maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding BREBERSNEREEERAT ZBNME
through operating cash flows and advances from the immediate RanREEkAHEEESR °
holding company.
The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its current and expected REBZEREEHERBRIRTEHZ RE
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves BEER MRERSENRSHERE > LURE
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer HigPRRAREESEX °
term.
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the REBNRBRSHRBBRSORITEMNRZE
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted HEEIEEROT
payments, is as follows:
2023
Repayable on
demand/less
than 1 year
MERMEIE -  1to2years Over 2 years Total
—EMT —EWME MELL E At
HKD HKD HKD HKD
BT BT BT BT
Trade payables FE(TBRTR 72,459,276 - - 72,459,276
Financial liabilities included in st AEMAEMRERK
other payables and accruals  [EstERZ SR8 E 192,436,064 - - 192,436,064
Rental and other deposits e REMZE 57,925,054 26,211,606 19,836,811 103,973,471
Amount due to the immediate  fE{T BB AT ZHIE
holding company 254,303,568 - - 254,303,568
Lease liabilities HEERE 1,279,666 - - 1,279,666
578,403,628 26,211,606 19,836,811 624,452,045
2022
Repayable on
demand/less
than 1 year
HMERMEE - 1to2years QOver 2 years Total
—&EF —EMF ML E “ast
HKD HKD HKD HKD
BT BT BT BT
Trade payables FE(TERTR 45,531,974 - - 45,531,974
Financial liabilities included in ETAEMABENRIER
other payables and accruals FEstERzS/fAE 161,787,716 - - 161,787,716
Rental and other deposits HEREMZE 57,960,138 16,011,924 20,315,232 94,287,294
Amount due to the immediate fESEZIEIRATRIE
holding company 254,303,568 - - 254,303,568
Lease liabilities HEAR 2,254,797 1,279,666 - 3,534,463
521,838,193 17,291,590 20,315,232 559,445,015
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(continued)

(a)

(b)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Currency risk

The Group’s functional currency is HKD. The Group is exposed to
currency risk primarily through investments in securities that are
denominated in another currency, being primarily United States
dollars (“USD"). As the HKD is pegged to the USD, the Group
considers the risk of movements in exchange rates between the HKD
and the USD to be insignificant.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in
order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes for managing capital during the year.

Capital of the Group comprises all components of shareholder’s
equity. Management reviews the capital structure periodically and
manages its overall capital structure if necessary. As at 31 March
2023 and 2022, the Group was in a net cash position.

31. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 12 July 2023, 714,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company of HKD1
each were issued and allotted to the immediate holding company of

the Company in consideration of the injection of an aggregate sum of
HKD714,000,000 into the Company.

The Company has identified a cybersecurity incident involving unauthorized

third-party access to certain servers of the Company in mid-August 2023.

The Company took immediate steps to promptly execute mitigation actions,

launch an investigation with independent cybersecurity experts, and seek

for legal advice. As of the date of this report, no litigation nor material

impact was noted.
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32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 32. ZATMBRRAR 32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 32. ZATMEIRAR @)
Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at RABHFRRRNBEPRZELNT (continued)
the end of the reporting period is as follows: 2023 2022
2023 2022 HKD HKD
HKD HKD =T AT
T BT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES JERBaE
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREEE Development maintenance fund BRIEERES 371,802,919 379,206,407
Property, plant and equipment E RN Y 3,225,323,252  2,942,946,396 Lease liabilities BEAMH - 1.279.666
Right-of-use assets EREEE 1,190,514 3,358,084
Deferred rental receivables IEEFEWNFE S 6,525,764 10,453,908 Total non-current liabilities 371,802,919 380,486,073
Investment in a subsidiary WEABRE 1 1
Prepayments and deposits BNFIERIZE 432,671 5,163,496 Net assets BESE 3,381,864,484 3,170,556,023
Total non-current assets JERENE ELERE 3,233,472,202  2,961,921,885 EQUITY fEz
Share capital fis 984,000,002 538,000,002
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE Reserves (Note) (s 2,397,864,482  2,632,556,021
Inventories =75 376,004 171,488
Trade receivables FEUERAR 27,999,345 18,743,644 Total equity U 3,381,864,484  3,170,556,023
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FETRIE ~ e K  HANFE IS 25,029,441 36,109,606
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries FEW R R B AT 7B 201,442 1,938,909
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEWBfT 8 A B R IE 171,844,623 177,671,684
Investments in securities BHERE 653,239,404 692,395,437
Cash and cash equivalents BEMIREEHEER 326,309,761 294,250,365 Simon CHAN Sai-ming lvy CHEUNG Wing-han
PRA4MEA SRFAY
Total current assets MENE EAREE 1,205,000,020  1,221,281,133 Director Director
EF EFE
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEAR
Trade payables FE{TBRTR 72,459,276 45,531,974
Other payables and accruals HihfE B R ESTE A 252,788,838 235,783,289
Rental and other deposits HeREMGE 103,973,471 94,287,294
Amount due to the immediate holding company e ERERATRIE 254,303,568 254,303,568
Lease liabilities HEaE 1,279,666 2,254,797
Total current liabilities REB(ELERE 684,804,819 632,160,922
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEERE 520,195,201 589,120,211
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BERERRSAR 3,753,667,403  3,551,042,096

195



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RHRRMEE

31 March 2023 202343831 H

32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 32. ZRABIMIEIRRE (@)
(continued)

Note: FiEE :

Movements of the Company's reserves are as follows: AABREBEZEBHNT

At 1 April 2021 2021448 1H 5,377,494,224 (2,541,609,418) 2,835,884,806
Loss and total comprehensive FEREIBREEEBEEE

loss for the year - (211,874,565) (211,874,565)
Transfer from development maintenance REBREEECEBTERGEHE

fund to capital reserve 8,545,780 - 8,545,780
At 31 March 2022 and at 1 April 2022 7202293831 H%20225F4818 5,386,040,004 (2,753,483,983) 2,632,556,021
Loss and total comprehensive FREIEREERIBALE

loss for the year - (242,095,027) (242,095,027)
Transfer from development maintenance REREEECEREEARGEE

fund to capital reserve 7,403,488 - 7,403,488
At 31 March 2023 2023438318 5,393,443,492 (2,995,579,010) 2,397,864,482

33. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 33. R SMBRSR
The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for REMBIRERIN2023F 128 12HEEERZET
issue by the Board of Directors on 12 December 2023 . FrAlEEY o
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